
     
 

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA 

February 28, 2022 - 7:00 pm 
 

THE RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
6101 CAPULINA AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, IL 60053 

In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act, all Village Board and Commission meetings are open to the 
public. This meeting can be viewed remotely via the live stream link found at: www.mortongroveil.org/stream. (If 
an Executive Session is placed on the agenda, the meeting shall commence at 6:00 pm and the time between 6:00 
pm and 7:00 pm shall be used for the Executive Session per 1-5-7A of the Village of Morton Grove Municipal 
Code. If the Agenda does not include an Executive Session, the meeting will begin at 7:00 pm.) 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call  

 
4. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting – February 14, 2022 

 
5. Special Reports - None 

 
6. Public Hearings - None 

 
7. Plan Commission Reports - None 

 
8. Residents’ Comments (agenda items only) 

 
9. President’s Report – Administration, Council of Mayors, Northwest Municipal Conference, 

Strategic Plan Committee 
 

10. Clerk’s Report – Advisory Commission on Aging, Chamber of Commerce, Condominium 
Association 

 
11. Staff Report 

 
a. Village Administrator 

1) Resolution 22-10: Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement Between the 
Northwest Water Commission of Cook County and the Village of Morton Grove, 
Illinois for the Supply and Purchase of Water Through an Emergency Connection 

b. Corporation Counsel 

http://www.mortongroveil.org/stream


 2 

12. Reports by Trustees 
 

a. Trustee Grear – Finance Department, Building Department, Special Events Commission, 
Police Facility Committee, Sawmill Station TIF (Trustee Witko)  

 
b. Trustee Khan – Community & Economic Development Department, Plan 
Commission/Zoning Board, Capital Projects, French Market, Lehigh/Ferris TIF (Trustee 
Travis)  
 
c. Trustee Minx – Fire Department, Fire Pension Board, Fire & Police Commission, Legal 
Department, RED Center (Trustee Thill)  
   
d. Trustee Thill – Family & Senior Services Department, Appearance Commission, 
SWANCC (Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County), Water Commission (Trustee Minx)  
  
e. Trustee Travis – Police Department, Police Pension Board, Community Relations 
Commission, Traffic Safety Commission, NIPSTA (Trustee Khan)   

 
f. Trustee Witko – Public Works Department, Environment & Natural Resources 
Commission, Information Technology Department, Lincoln/Lehigh TIF (Trustee Grear) 
 

1) Resolution 22-08: Authorizing a Contract with A Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc. for 
the Dempster Street Streetscape Improvements Project  
 

2) Resolution 22-09: Authorizing the Execution of a Task Order with Ciorba Group, 
Inc. for Construction Engineering Services for the Dempster Street Streetscape 
Improvements Project   
 

3) Resolution 22-11: Authorizing a Contract with Insituform Technologies USA, LLC for 
the 2022 Sewer Lining Program-Contract A  
 

4) Resolution 22-12: Authorizing a Contract Extension with Bill’s Complete 
Landscape Service, Inc. for the 2022 Landscape Maintenance Program  
 

5) Resolution 22-13: To Authorize the Purchase of one (1) New 2021 Ram Master 
Cargo Van and Sewer Camera System from Standard Equipment Company of 
Elmhurst, Illinois  

 
13. Other Business 
 
14. Presentation of Warrants - $1,903,361.79 
 
15. Residents’ Comments 

 
16. Adjournment 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE PRESIDENT 
AND THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
FEBRUARY 14, 2022 

CALL TO ORDER 

I. 
& II. 

Village President Dan DiMaria convened the Regular Meeting of the Village Board at 7:00 p.m. 
in the Council Chambers of Village Hall. 

III. Village Clerk Eileen Harford called the roll. Present were Trustees Bill Grear, Saba Khan,
Rita Minx, John Thill, Connie Travis, and Janine Witko.

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Trustee Minx moved to accept the Minutes of the January 24, 2022 Village Board meeting as 
presented, seconded by Trustee Witko.  Motion passed unanimously via voice vote. 

V. SPECIAL REPORTS 

NONE 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

NONE 

VII. PLAN COMMISSION REPORTS 

NONE 

VIII. RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS (Agenda Items Only) 

NONE 



Minutes of February 14, 2022 Board Meeting 

 2 

 

IX. 
 

1. 
 
 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 

b. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c. 
 
 
 
 
 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 

3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. 
 
 
 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 
Mayor DiMaria said he was humbled and honored to proclaim February 18, 2022, as “Sidney  
Wallach Day” in the Village in honor of his 100th birthday. He noted that Mr. Wallach was raised 
in the North Lawndale neighborhood of Chicago as a first-generation American from Russian-
born immigrants. There he became a die-hard Chicago Cubs fan and developed his sense of  
patriotism and community pride. 
 
In December of 1942, Mr. Wallach was drafted into the army and served with distinction 
through 1946. This included his clandestine service at a secret airstrip in a remote location in 
Greenland that resulted in his qualification as a sharpshooter, and his receipt of three overseas 
service bars, one service stripe, a European/African/Middle Eastern theatre ribbon, an American 
theatre ribbon, and a Victory medal. 
 
Mayor DiMaria said when Mr. Wallach retired to civilian life, he married and established a home 
in Morton Grove in 1957, where he and his wife raised four children, two of whom were present 
with their dad this evening. Mr. Wallach served his community by becoming a Cub Scout and 
Boy Scout Scoutmaster, which contributed to the Wallach family being designated in 1965 as 
“Morton Grove’s Family of the Year.” Mr. Wallach has continued to give back to his community 
throughout his life by his involvement in countless Village- and community-sponsored programs 
and events, including his current active participation in senior activities at the American Legion 
Memorial Civic Center.  
 
Mayor DiMaria proclaimed February 18, 2022 as “Sidney Wallach Day” and said that he,  
the Village Board, and the residents of Morton Grove wished to recognize Mr. Wallach’s  
contributions, not only to the Village, but to the nation, on the occasion of his 100th birthday, 
and wished him many more happy and healthy years. 
 
 
Mayor DiMaria encouraged everyone to attend the next Neighborhood Outreach Meeting, 
which is being held on Thursday, February 17, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at the Civic Center,  
6140 Dempster. He said this is an opportunity to meet your elected officials and department 
heads, to learn more about ongoing and new projects, and to discuss issues one-on-one. 
 
 
Mayor DiMaria said the Village’s holiday lights recycling program has been extended until 
February 28, 2022. The Village, through the Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County 
(SWANCC) and Elgin Recycling, is offering free holiday lights recycling. Only strings of lights will 
be accepted (no garland with lights entwined, lighted wreaths, etc.) There is a holiday lights  
recycle bin located in the lobby of Village Hall. 
 
 
Mayor DiMaria said the Police Department is still accepting applications for the 2022 Citizens  
Police Academy. The academy will be every Tuesday from March 22 to May 24, from 6:30 p.m. 
to 8:30 p.m. If you are interested in getting an up-close look at what police do, this program is 
for you.  



Minutes of February 14, 2022 Board Meeting 

 3 

IX. 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 

5. 
 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT (continued) 
 
The 10-week program is designed to give participants an understanding of the operation of the 
MGPD and a working knowledge of what law enforcement is all about.  The academy classes are 
held once a week and the class is limited to 20 students, so register early. There is no cost to 
participate. More information can be found at the Village’s website at mortongroveil.org/cpa.  
 
 
Mayor DiMaria said that February is National Restaurant Month, adding that the Village will  
again be having a “Dine Morton Grove” contest. He noted that 2021 was an incredibly difficult 
year for local restaurants, which is why it’s more important than ever to show your support.  
Mayor DiMaria encouraged everyone to celebrate National Restaurant Month by entering the  
“Eat at Morton Grove Restaurants and Win” contest. You can enter the contest by submitting  
photos of you and your friends enjoying Morton Grove’s restaurants, or by submitting individual 
receipts for $25 or more. (If you submit photos, you don’t need to meet the $25 per entry  
requirement.) Each entry is eligible to win one of ten $25 gift cards! Photos can be submitted by 
uploading them at www.mortongroveil.org/dinemg. Photos and receipts can also be dropped 
off at Village Hall. Winning entries will be announced at the March 14, 2021 Village Board meet-
ing. Prizes are limited to one winner per household. More information can be found on the  
Village’s website. 
 
 

X. 
 
 

CLERK’S REPORT 
 
Clerk Harford had no report this evening. 
 
 

XI. 
 

A. 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

Village Administrator: 
 
Mr. Czerwinski had no report this evening. 
 
 

 
B. 

 

 
Corporation Counsel: 
 
Corporation Counsel Liston had no report this evening. 
 
 

XII. 
 

A. 
 

1. 
 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS 
 
Trustee Grear: 
 
Trustee Grear presented Ordinance 22-01, Amending Title 1, Chapter 9, Sections 1-9A-2 and  
1-9A-4 of the Municipal Code to Increase the Threshold Requirement for Formal Bidding from 
$20,000 to $25,000.  

http://www.mortongroveil.org/dinemg


Minutes of February 14, 2022 Board Meeting 

 4 

XII. 
 

A. 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 

b. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. 
 
 

c. 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 
 
Trustee Grear: (continued) 
 
This is the second reading of this Ordinance. 
 
Trustee Grear explained that the Municipal Code currently requires Village Board approval for any 
purchase or contract for services expected to exceed $20,000, except for emergency purchases or 
services or products or services covered by blanked purchase orders or contracts previously  
approved by the Village Board. 
 
In 2017, the State of Illinois, by statute, raised the threshold to $25,000. Due to increased costs 
attributable to the rate of inflation, the Village’s current $20,000 threshold for formal bidding  
hampers Village operations and places an unnecessary burden on staff. The Village Administrator 
and the Finance Director have recommended that the Municipal Code be amended to increase 
the Village’s purchasing limits from $20,000 to $25,000 to be consistent with state statute and 
meet contemporary standards. 
 
Trustee Grear said that “this is a wise move for the Village,” and moved to adopt Ordinance 22-01, 
seconded by Trustee Minx. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Grear            aye                        Tr. Khan           aye                                Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill              aye                         Tr. Travis         aye                                Tr. Witko         aye 
 
 
Trustee Grear next presented Resolution 22-07, Authorizing a Professional Services Agreement  
Between the Village of Morton Grove and the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission for 
Accounting Services. 
 
He explained that the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission (MGNWC) operates a water system 
for residents and businesses of Morton Grove and Niles, and currently needs professional  
accounting services to help with various accounting needs. Village staff is able to perform these 
services for the MGNWC, and the MGNWC and the Village have negotiated a professional services 
agreement for the Village to provide these services to the MGNWC. The Agreement provides for 
the MGNWC to pay the Village $25,000 per year for these services in 2022, with that fee being 
increased annually by the greater of 3% or the increase in the consumer price index. The  
Agreement can be cancelled by either party for any reason upon sixty days written notice. 
 
Trustee Grear moved, seconded by Trustee Witko, to approve Resolution 22-07. 
 
Trustee Grear said he was thrilled by this, but wasn’t sure if the Finance Department will be 
thrilled. 
 
Trustee Thill commented that he thought $25,000 was too low. He felt it should be a baseline and 
then have actual time factored into it. 



Minutes of February 14, 2022 Board Meeting 

 5 

XII. 
 

A. 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 
 
Trustee Grear: (continued) 
 
Mayor DiMaria called for the vote on Resolution 22-07. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Grear            aye                        Tr. Khan           aye                                Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill              aye                         Tr. Travis         aye                                Tr. Witko         aye 
 

 
 

B. 
 
 
 

 
Trustee Khan: 
 
Trustee Khan had no formal report this evening.  
 

 
 

C. 
 

1. 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. 
 

 
Trustee Minx: 
 
Trustee Minx presented Resolution 22-06, Authorizing the Purchase of One Keltron Alarm 
Monitoring Device From Chicago Metropolitan Fire Prevention Company of Elmhurst, Illinois. 
 
She explained that the current alarm monitoring device located at Fire Station #4 serves as a 
back-up unit to the R.E.D. Center alarm monitoring system in the unlikely event their system 
would fail. The unit at Station 4 currently monitors around 450 fire alarms for both Morton Grove 
and the Village of Niles. The current Keltron DMP703 monitoring device relies on old technology 
involving copper wires and phone lines that date back to 2009 when the Village had  
approximately 150 alarms. The unit requested, a Keltron LS 7000 Life-Safety Event Management 
Automation System, provides state-of-the-art technology, is UL  listed and provides monitoring, 
dispatching, and reporting with event type, location, hazards, and other critical information. The 
new system has the ability to receive alarms from most industry standard communications tech-
nologies, including Ethernet/IP, cellular, active network radio, digital communicators, direct wire, 
and coded signals. This device is identical to the one installed at R.E.D. Center so if there is a need 
to place the back-up center in service, alarm monitoring is not disrupted. 
 
Trustee Minx said Chicago Metropolitan Fire Protection is the sole-source vendor and will provide 
the product, training, engineering, installation, and on-site service of the new system. The finan-
cial impact is $43,590.00. 
 
Trustee Minx moved to approve Resolution 22-06, seconded by Trustee Travis. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Grear            aye                        Tr. Khan           aye                                Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill              aye                         Tr. Travis         aye                                Tr. Witko         aye 
 



Minutes of February 14, 2022 Board Meeting 

 6 

XII. 
 

D. 
 
 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 
 
Trustee Thill: 
 
Trustee Thill had no formal report this evening, but commented that the Police Department  
had done a “blind” survey about how they interact with residents. He said they had gotten rave 
reviews, and congratulated them on the results of the survey. 
 

 
 

E. 
 

1. 
 
 
 

 
Trustee Travis: 
 
Trustee Travis encouraged everyone to “save the date” of Saturday, April 16, 2022, for the 
12th Morton Grove Community Artists Performance, sponsored by the Community Relations 
Commission. The event is free to the public and will take place from 1:00 p.m. to 2:00 p.m. at the 
Civic Center. It will feature live performances on stage per COVID guidelines at the time and will  
also be available to livestream. This is a platform for people of all abilities to celebrate our 
diversity and uniqueness. Submissions can be made from February 1 through March 11 at noon to 
www.identityperformingarts.org/projects.aspx. Anyone who has questions should email Ginny at 
Ginny@identityperformingarts.org. 
 
 

 
F. 

 
1. 

 
 

a. 
 
 
 

b. 
 
 
 
 
 

c. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

d. 
 

 
Trustee Witko: 
 
Trustee Witko presented Resolution 22-05, Authorizing a Contract With McGill Construction LLC 
for 2022 Street Patching Program. 
 
She explained that the annual street patching program is a preventative measure for asphalt 
streets in order to maintain the quality, drainage, and drivability, and to extend the life of the 
streets in the Village. This work should be completed over two days. 
 
The Public Works Department developed contract documents and bids were solicited. Six bids 
were received and opened on January 14, 2022, with the results showing the low bidder as  
McGill Construction LLC. Their qualifications have been evaluated and they were determined  
to be qualified to perform this work. This contract conforms to purchasing requirements of the 
Village.  
 
Trustee Travis said the bid amount exceeds the budgeted funds for this work. The Village reserves 
the right to reduce the scope of work included in a contract and the contractor is willing to reduce 
the contract amount to the budgeted amount. This contract must conform to the requirements of 
the Prevailing Wage Act. The fiscal impact of this Resolution is $70,000. 
 
Trustee Witko moved, seconded by Trustee Minx, to approve Resolution 22-05. 
 
Trustee Thill commented that he would like to see a list of the streets that would be impacted.  
Superintendent of Public Works Joe Dahm said he would provide the Board a list. 

http://www.identityperformingarts.org/projects.aspx
mailto:Ginny@identityperformingarts.org


Minutes of February 14, 2022 Board Meeting 

 7 

XII. 
 

F. 
 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 
 
Trustee Witko: (continued) 
 
Mayor DiMaria called for the vote on Resolution 22-05. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 

Tr. Grear            aye                        Tr. Khan           aye                                Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill              aye                         Tr. Travis         aye                                Tr. Witko         aye 
 
 

XIII. 
 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

NONE 
 

 
XIV. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WARRANTS 
 

Trustee Grear presented the Warrant Register for February 14, 2022 in the amount of  
$856,654.40. He moved to approve this evening’s Warrant Register as presented, seconded by  
Trustee Thill. 
 
Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Grear            aye                        Tr. Khan           aye                                Tr. Minx           aye 
Tr. Thill              aye                         Tr. Travis         aye                                Tr. Witko         aye 
 
 

XV. 
 
 

RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS 
 

NONE 
 

 
XVI. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business before the Board, Trustee Minx moved to adjourn the meeting,  
seconded by Trustee Grear. Motion passed unanimously via voice vote. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:17 p.m. 

 



Minutes of February 14, 2022 Board Meeting 

 8 

 
 
 
 
PASSED this 28th day of February, 2022. 
 
 
Trustee Grear     __________  

Trustee Khan        

Trustee Minx     __________  

Trustee Thill     __________  

Trustee Travis     __________  

Trustee Witko     __________  
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED by me this 28th day of February, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Board of Trustees, Morton Grove, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 28th day of February, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove, Cook County, Illinois 
 
 
  Minutes by Teresa Cousar 



   
 

Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Prepared by:   Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 

Legislative Summary  
 

Resolution 22-10 
 

AUTHORIZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE NORTHWEST 
WATER COMMISSION OF COOK COUNTY AND THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, 

ILLINOIS FOR THE SUPPLY AND PURCHASE OF WATER THROUGH AN EMERGENCY 
CONNECTION 

 

Introduced: February 28, 2022 
  
Purpose: To authorize an intergovernmental agreement with Northwest Water Commission for 

purchase of water through an emergency connection which will improve the resiliency of 
the Village’s water supply system. 

  
Background: The Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission (MGNWC) supplies water to the Village for 

its community water supply. The water is purchased by the MGNWC from the city of 
Evanston. The Village currently has no back-up source of water in the event the MGNWC 
is unable to supply the Village with its full requirement of water.  The Northwest Water 
Commission (NWC) is able to provide an emergency source of water for the Village at 
its booster station north of Dempster St.  and west of Waukegan Road. The Village has 
negotiated terms for an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) whereby the NWC will 
supply water to the Village on an emergency basis pursuant to a connection to be built 
by the Village at its sole expense. The Village will be responsible for all design and 
construction costs. This resolution will authorize approval of the IGA. 

  
Depart. Affected Public Works Department 
  
Fiscal Impact: None 
  
Source of Funds: N/A 
  

Workload Impact: The Public Works Department as part of their normal work activities will perform the 
management and implementation of the project. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special  
Considerations or 
Requirements: 

None 
 

 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION 22-10 

 
AUTHORIZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

NORTHWEST WATER COMMISSION OF COOK COUNTY AND THE VILLAGE OF 
MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS FOR THE SUPPLY AND PURCHASE OF WATER 

THROUGH AN EMERGENCY CONNECTION 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a 

home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the 

State of Illinois, can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government 

affairs, including but not limited to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, the Northwest Water Commission (the NWC”) operates a waterworks 

system to transport Lake Michigan water purchased from the City of Evanston to the water 

systems of the NWC's, members, and customers; and  

WHEREAS, the Village owns and operates a waterworks system to provide Lake 

Michigan water for its residents and businesses. The Village receives its water from the Morton 

Grove-Niles Water Commission (“MGNWC”) who purchases the water from the city of 

Evanston; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the residents and businesses of the Village to have 

an alternative source of water if, during an unusual event or an emergency, the MGNWC cannot 

supply the Village with all its water needs; and  

WHEREAS, the NWC is able to provide an emergency source of water for the Village at 

its booster station north of Dempster St.  and west of Waukegan Road; and  

WHEREAS, the NWC and the Village have negotiated terms for an Intergovernmental 

Agreement whereby the NWC will supply water to the Village on an emergency basis pursuant 

to a connection to be built by the Village at its sole expense; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, Article VII, Section 10 of the Illinois Constitution of 

1970, and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., the NWC and the 

Village are authorized to enter into this Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as 

hereinabove set forth. 



2 
 

Section 2.  The Village Administrator or his designee is authorized to finalize the 

negotiations for and preparation of an Intergovernmental Agreement (the “IGA”) between the 

Northwest Water Commission of Cook County and the Village of Morton Grove for supply and 

purchase of water on an emergency basis in substantial conformity with Exhibit A.  

Section 3. The President of the Village of Morton Grove is hereby authorized to execute, 

and Clerk is hereby authorized to attest to the IGA. 

Section 4. The Village Administrator or his designees are authorized to take all steps 

necessary to implement the IGA. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law. 

 

PASSED THIS 28th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2022  

 
Trustee Grear  ________ 

Trustee Khan  ________ 

Trustee Minx  ________ 

Trustee Thill  ________ 

Trustee Travis  ________ 

Trustee Witko  ________ 

 

 

APPROVED BY ME THIS 28th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2022 

 
 

______________________________ 
        Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
        Village of Morton Grove 
        Cook County, Illinois 
 
 
ATTESTED AND FILED IN MY OFFICE 
THIS 1st DAY OF MARCH 2022 
 
 
________________________________ 
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



1 

THIS DOCUMENT IS A DRAFT AND REMAINS SUBJECT TO REVIEW, MODIFICATION 

AND APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE NORTHWEST WATER 
COMMISSION 

NORTHWEST WATER COMMISSION EMERGENCY INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT 
WITH THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE  

This Emergency Interconnection Agreement, dated as of _______________, 2022, 

by and between the NORTHWEST WATER COMMISSION, Cook County, State of Illinois 

(the "Supplier"), an Illinois municipal corporation, and the VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, 

Cook County, an Illinois municipal corporation ("Customer").  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Supplier operates a Waterworks System (as defined in Section 2 

below) to transport Lake Michigan water purchased from the City of Evanston to the water 

systems of the Supplier's, members, and customers; and  

WHEREAS, Customer owns and operates the waterworks system described in 

Exhibit A attached to this Agreement (the "Customer System Map")  

WHEREAS, Customer desires to be served with water from the Supplier under 

Emergency Conditions (as defined in Section 2 below); and  

WHEREAS, the Supplier is willing to provide water to Customer under Emergency 

Conditions; and  

WHEREAS, the Supplier has entered into a contract with the City of Evanston to 

purchase Lake Michigan water sufficient to meet the water supply needs of the Supplier; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, Article VII, Section 10 of the Illinois Constitution of 

Exhibit "A"



 2 

1970, and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., the Supplier and 

Customer are authorized to enter into this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Customer recognizes that the Supplier will incur certain additional costs 

in adding Customer to the Waterworks System under Emergency Conditions; and  

WHEREAS, by the execution of this Agreement, Customer is surrendering none of its 

rights to the ownership and operation of the Customer System, except as expressly provided 

for, and only to the limited extent so provided for, in this Agreement, and the Supplier is 

surrendering none of its rights to the ownership and operation of its Waterworks System, but 

each expressly asserts its continued right to operate such systems; and  

WHEREAS, Customer recognizes that the Supplier may in the future enter into 

contracts with other members and customers; and  

WHEREAS, Customer recognizes that Customer is not a Contract Customer of the 

Supplier;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and of the mutual 

covenants and agreements herein contained, the Supplier and Customer hereby agree as 

follows:  

SECTION 1. PREAMBLES.  

The preambles hereto are hereby incorporated herein by this reference and are made 

fully a part of this Agreement.  

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS. .  

The following words and phrases shall have the following meanings when used in this. 

Agreement:  

A.  "Agreement" means this Emergency Interconnection Agreement.  



 3 

B.  "Customer” means the Village of Morton Grove, a home rule municipal 

corporation located in Cook County, Illinois 

C. "Customer Rate Per 1,000 Gallons" means the generally applicable retail 

customer rate as established from time to time by Supplier. The current rate is $1.99 per 1,000 

gallons, subject to annual amendment by Supplier based on a pro-rata increase of Supplier’s 

cost of water or reasonable operational costs. Written notice of any annual amendment shall 

be provided to the Customer along with all documentation justifying the increase. This rate is 

based on a (1) capital charge based on current capacity which is presently $0.69/1000 gallons; 

(2) operation and maintenance costs of the Supplier based upon actual usage which is 

presently $1.30/1000 gallons; and (3) cost charged by the City of Evanston, that are not 

included in the operation and maintenance costs charged pursuant to items to item (2) above 

(collectively the “Rate Formula”). The adjustment to the rate will be examined by the 

Commission and subject to adjustment by the commission pursuant to the Rate Formula set 

forth herein. With the unit of measure for Potable Water delivered shall be gallons of water, 

US Standard Liquid Measure, and all measuring devices shall be co calibrated unless the 

Supplier and the Customer agree otherwise in writing.  Should it become necessary or 

desirable to use other units of measure, the basis of conversion shall be that 7.48 gallons 

is equivalent to one cubic foot. 

D  "Customer System" means the waterworks system described in Exhibit A 

attached to this Agreement.  

E.  "Customer System Connection Facilities" means those portions of the Customer 

System between the Point of Delivery and influent side of the Customer’s existing Waterworks 

System, which facilities are depicted in the final plans attached as Exhibit D to this Agreement. 

The Customer System Connection Facilities will be owned by the Customer. 



 4 

F.  Emergency Use of Water. Upon completion of the Improvements, the Customer 

shall be authorized to utilize the Emergency Interconnection Facilities to supplement its 

potable water supply during an Emergency Use of Water event, by drawing upon the potable 

water supply of the other, subject to the terms set forth herein. For the purposes of this 

Agreement, an “Emergency Use of Water ” event shall be defined as a temporary period of 

time, not to exceed five days, during which the Customer is experiencing or anticipates not 

being able to supply average day demand, or low water storage levels which it determines in 

its sole discretion to be a threat to public safety, health, fire prevention or fire suppression 

requirements. The flow rate through the Emergency Interconnection Facilities shall not exceed 

3.88 million gallons per day (“mgd”) without the express prior permission of both Parties.  

G.  "Emergency Service" means all water supplied to Customer pursuant to this 

Agreement.  

H.  "Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Supplier.  

I.  "Interconnection Facilities" and “Emergency Interconnection Facilities” means 

the Supplier Connection Facilities and the Customer System Connection Facilities.  

J.  "Interconnection Facilities Cost" means (i) the full actual cost incurred by the 

Customer and the Supplier in connection with the preliminary design of the Interconnection 

Facilities, including without limitation all reasonable legal, engineering, consulting and 

administrative fees, costs and expenses associated therewith, and (ii) the full actual cost 

incurred in connection with (a) the final design, bidding, contracting, managing and actual 

construction of the Interconnection Facilities, including without limitation equipment required 



 5 

for the operation of the Interconnection Facilities, and all reasonable administrative, 

supervisory, inspection, engineering, surveying and legal fees, costs and expenses associated 

therewith; (b) the acquisition of lands, easements and rights of way over lands and waters 

necessary for the Interconnection Facilities, and all reasonable administrative, title, surveying 

and legal fees, costs and expenses associated therewith; and (c) mutually agreed reasonable 

costs for the review and processing of plans and agreements for the Interconnection Facilities, 

including without limitation all legal, engineering, consulting and administrative fees, costs and 

expenses associated therewith. All costs which will impact the other party will be preapproved 

by the impacted party. All costs after the new connection valve provided by the supplier or the 

defined Point of Delivery shall be that of the purchaser, see Exhibit B and Exhibit C for 

description.  

K.  "Lake Water" means potable, filtered water drawn from Lake Michigan.  

 
L.  “Morton Grove – Niles Water Commission” means Customer’s regular water 

source of Lake Michigan water. 

M.  "Point of Delivery" means the point at which the Lake Water delivered to 

Customer pursuant to this Agreement leaves the Supplier Connection Facilities and enters the 

Customer System Connection Facilities. The Point of Delivery shall be at a point 10 feet south 

of the outside wall of the vault containing the water meter.  

N.  “Source” means the Northwest Water Commission.  

O.  "Source Contract" means the Water Supply Contract, dated March 4, 1981, 

between the Supplier and the City of Evanston, as amended or supplemented from time to 



 6 

time.  

P.  "Supplier" means the Northwest Water Commission, State of Illinois.  

Q.  "Supplier Connection Facilities" means the portions of the Waterworks System 

between the Point of Delivery and existing Waterworks System to be constructed pursuant to 

this Agreement by the Customer to connect the Customer System to the existing Waterworks 

System, which facilities are depicted in the preliminary and final plans attached as Exhibits C 

C-1 and C-2 to this Agreement and which shall be owned by the Supplier. The Supplier 

Connection Facilities include the valve, the valve vault, meter, backflow preventer as well as 

any other necessary ancillary appurtenances.  

R.  "Waterworks System" means all the Supplier's facilities, including land; 

easements; rights-of-way over lands and waters; pumping facilities, storage facilities, metering 

stations and other facilities; mains; and pipelines acquired and used for the purposes of 

providing and transmitting Lake Water from the Source's water supply system to the Supplier's 

customers. The Customer System Connection Facilities are not part of the Waterworks 

System.  

SECTION 3. CONSTRUCTION OF THE INTERCONNECTION FACILITIES.  

A.  Plans and Specifications for Supplier Connection Facilities and Customer 

System Connection Facilities and Interconnection Facilities Costs. Customer shall, at its sole 

cost and expense, prepare, and submit to the Supplier for its review and approval, complete 

detailed plans, specifications and construction contract documents for the Supplier Connection 

Facilities and Customer System Connection Facilities and Interconnection Facilities Costs not 

later than 120 days after execution of this agreement. The Supplier shall provide its comments 



 7 

and revisions to Customer within 28 days after receipt of the complete detailed plans, 

specifications and construction contract documents for the Supplier Connection Facilities and 

Customer System Connection Facilities. Customer shall incorporate all required changes to 

such documents after receipt of the Supplier's comments and revisions. 

B.  IEPA and Other Approvals for Supplier Connection Facilities and Customer 

System Connection Facilities. Customer shall, at its sole cost and expense and within 28 

days after receipt of the Supplier's comments and revisions pursuant to Subsection 3A 

above, submit such finally revised documents for approval and permitting to the Illinois 

Environmental Protection Agency and every other federal, state or local governmental body 

having jurisdiction over any element of the Customer System Connection Facilities and 

Supplier Connection Facilities, and shall diligently pursue each such approval and permit 

until it is secured.  

C.  Commencement of Construction of Supplier Connection Facilities and 

Customer System Connection Facilities. Unless precluded by events or acts beyond the 

control of Customer, Customer shall, at its sole cost and expense, cause construction of the 

Supplier Connection Facilities and Customer System Connection Facilities to be commenced 

within 90 days after receipt of the last approval from any governmental body required as a 

condition precedent to construction of the Supplier Connection Facilities and Customer 

System Connection Facilities. The Supplier shall have the right to inspect, with prior notice, 

all construction related to the Customer System Connection Facilities. Upon completion of 

the construction of Supplier Connection Facilities customer shall convey Supplier Connection 

Facilities to Supplier by Bill of Sale. 



 8 

D.  Connection of Supplier Connection Facilities and Customer System Connection 

Facilities. The Customer’s operation of the Customers Waterworks System, including, without 

limitation, its pressure adjusting stations, shall not cause surges or back-flows into the 

Supplier’s Waterworks System.  Any connection from the Supplier’s Connection Facilities 

and/or Suppliers Waterworks System to the Customer’s System Connection Facilities shall be 

provided with air gap protection or backflow prevention. The Supplier shall not be responsible 

for any damage to the Customer’s Waterworks System caused by the design, operation, or 

maintenance of the Customer’s Waterworks System. The Customer shall be solely responsible 

for delivering Potable Water to its customers at pressures required or necessary to make such 

delivery.  

E. Illustrative Schedule of Events. An "Illustrative Schedule of Events" depicting, on 

the basis of assumptions concerning the length of time that will be required to secure various 

governmental approvals, the sequence of work pursuant to this Section 3 is attached to this 

Agreement as Exhibit E. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions 

of Exhibit E and the provisions of this Section 3, the provisions of this Section 3 shall 

control. 

 SECTION 4. MEASURING EQUIPMENT.  

A.  Flow Meter. The Customer shall, pursuant to the timetable established in 

Section 3 of this Agreement for the Supplier Connection Facilities, furnish and install at the 

meter vault to be constructed by the Customer a flow meter meeting the standards of the 

American Waterworks Association for measuring properly the quantity of Lake Water delivered 

under this Agreement. Customer and Supplier shall have access to the flow meter for 



 9 

examination, inspection, calibration, and adjustment at reasonable times, but the reading for 

billing purposes shall be collected by the Supplier and sent to the Customer each month. The 

Supplier shall keep an official record of the readings taken from the flow meter a copy of which 

record shall be provided to Customer upon request. At least once in each Fiscal Year, the 

Supplier shall calibrate the flow meter measuring the Lake Water delivered to the Customer 

System, and the Supplier, if they choose, and Customer shall jointly observe any adjustments 

that are made to the flow meter in case any adjustments shall be necessary. If any backflow 

prevention devises have been installed, then such backflow prevention devises shall be tested 

at least every 12 months by Customer in the presence of a representative of the Supplier, if 

they choose, and the Customer will make any repairs and replacements of the backflow 

prevention devises in case any adjustments shall be necessary. The Customer will submit all 

backflow test results to the Supplier or its designee.  

B.  Meter Malfunctions. If the Supplier or Customer at any time observes evidence 

of flow meter malfunction, such party shall promptly notify the other party, and the Supplier 

and Customer shall then cooperate to procure an immediate calibration test and such 

adjustment, replacement or other work necessary to return the flow meter to accuracy. The 

party who discovers such variation or malfunction shall give the other party notice not less 

than 48 hours prior to the time of any test of any meter (which tests shall be conducted 

during normal working hours) so that the other party may conveniently have a representative 

present. If such representative is not present after the required notification at the time set in 

such notice, calibration and adjustment may proceed in the absence of said representative 

notwithstanding any other provision of this Subsection 4B. If the percentage of. inaccuracy of 

the flow meter is found to be in excess of two percent, registration thereof shall be corrected 



 10 

by agreement of the Supplier and Customer based upon the best data available, for a period 

extending back to the time when such inaccuracy began if such time is ascertainable, or for a 

period extending back one-half of the time elapsed since the last date of calibration (but in no 

event further back than a period of six months) if such time is not ascertainable. If for any 

reason the flow meter is out of service or out of repair so that the amount of Lake Water 

delivered cannot be ascertained or computed from the reading thereof, then the Lake Water 

delivered during the period the flow meter is out of service or out of repair shall be estimated:  

1.  By correcting the error if the percentage. of the error is ascertainable by  

calibration tests or mathematical calculations; or  

2.  If the error is not ascertainable by calibration tests or mathematical calculation, 

by estimating the quantity of delivery by considering the quantity consumed by Customer’s 

own customers as measured by the meters located on their premises. 

C.  Unit of Measurement. The unit of measurement for Lake Water delivered 

hereunder shall be gallons of water, U.S. Standard Liquid Measure, and all measuring 

devices shall be so calibrated unless the Supplier and Customer otherwise agree.  

SECTION 5. OPERATION OF THE INTERCONNECTION FACILITIES.  

A.  Emergency Conditions. The Interconnection Facilities shall be utilized as 

specified in this Agreement unless otherwise approved, in writing, by the Supplier, pursuant 

to the sequence of operations set forth in Exhibit F.  

B.  Notice of Emergency Use of Water Event  Customer shall give telephonic 

notice to the Supplier of the need to declare an Emergency Use of Water event, the expected 



 11 

duration of Emergency Use of Water event and the amount of Lake Water needed during the 

Emergency Use of Water event prior to the operation of the Interconnection Facilities. The 

Interconnection Facilities shall not be operated unless and until Customer shall have given 

said notice to the Supplier. Supplier may discontinue or limit Emergency Service pursuant to 

Section 5 E below.  

C.  Notices During Emergency Use of Water Event. Customer shall provide daily 

telephonic notice to the Supplier for so long as Emergency Service continues during an  

Emergency Use of Water event and shall provide telephonic notice to the Supplier before final 

shut-off of Emergency Service for each such Emergency Use of Water event.  

D.  Record of Use During Emergency Use of Water Event. The Supplier shall create 

a record of each occurrence of Emergency Service, a copy of which shall be provided to 

Customer upon request and along with the invoice for the occurrence of Emergency Service. 

The Customer will collect and report the meter reading daily to the Supplier when Emergency 

Service continues for more than two consecutive days.  

E.  Limited Emergency Supply. The Supplier shall use its best efforts, within a 

reasonable time, to supply Customer with the amount of Lake Water from time to time 

available to the Supplier. The Supplier's obligation to furnish Lake Water as hereinabove 

provided shall be limited by (i) the amount of Lake Water from time to time available to the 

Supplier; (ii) the capacity of the Waterworks System; and (iii) the Lake Water demand of other 

emergency service customers of the Supplier; and (iv) ordinary transmission loss, including 

standard metering error, between the Supplier's source of supply and the flow meter 



 12 

described in Subsection 4A of this Agreement. Customer acknowledges that the Supplier 

may enter into contracts for the sale by the Supplier of Lake Water during emergency 

conditions to emergency service customers other than Customer. In the event that Customer 

experiences a qualified Emergency Use of Water event at the same time as any one or more, 

or all, other emergency service customers are experiencing emergency conditions, as 

defined in their respective emergency interconnection agreements with the Supplier, 

Customer shall be entitled, subject to the limitations of this Agreement and to the fullest extent 

possible, to receive during such period an equivalent share of the amount of Lake Water then 

available to the Supplier, as determined by the Supplier in its sole and absolute discretion. 

Under no circumstances, however, shall the Supplier furnish Lake Water pursuant to this 

Agreement where such action would have an adverse impact on the Supplier's operations. 

The Supplier agrees to use its best efforts to supply such excess amounts of Lake Water 

available to the Supplier in the event of a qualified Emergency Use of Water event, subject 

to the limitations of this Agreement, but the Supplier does not hereby guaranty delivery of 

Lake Water.  

 G.  Manner of Operation and Maintenance. The Interconnection Facilities shall be 

operated and maintained by Customer in such a manner as at no time to place or threaten to 

place Supplier or Waterworks System in jeopardy of failing to meet the regulations of any 

agency or governmental authority having jurisdiction over the operation of a public water 

supply. In addition, the Interconnection Facilities shall be operated and maintained by 

Customer in such a manner as at no time to place or threaten to place Supplier or 

Waterworks System in jeopardy of failing to meet the terms of Source Contract. The 



 13 

Interconnection Facilities shall be placed into operation by the Customer on a monthly basis, 

or more frequently if required, to maintain the integrity of the Emergency Interconnection 

Facilities. Supplier reserves the right to suspend or terminate any service in the event it 

determines there is a pressure or water quality threat to Waterworks System.  

H.  Duration of Emergency Service; Limits on Emergency Conditions. Emergency 

Service for each such qualified Emergency Use of Water event shall be provided by the 

Supplier for only so long as the qualified Emergency Use of Water event exists to allow 

Customer to promptly restore, using all due diligence, the flow capacity to meet or exceed 

average daily demand of the Customer System, or to allow the Morton Grove – Niles Water 

Commission to promptly restore, using all due diligence, full service to Customer, but in no 

event longer than five days for each such qualifying Emergency Use of Water event, except 

as otherwise allowed by this Agreement or agreed by the parties. Provided, however the flow 

rate shall not exceed 3.88 mgd.  

If the Customer's failure or refusal to maintain the Customer System as required by 

Subsection 6F of this Agreement results in repeated or excessive Emergency Service, as 

determined by the Supplier in its reasonable discretion, the Supplier may (i) upon 60 days 

written notice reduce or discontinue delivery of Lake Water to Customer until the Customer 

System is repaired so as to restore its ability to deliver water and function reliably as originally 

designed, as determined by the Supplier in its reasonable discretion, or  (ii) terminate this 

Agreement on 90 days advance written notice to Customer unless the parties reasonably 

agree that Customer will need more than 90 days to repair its system, in which case the 

Customer shall submit and the Supplier shall reasonably approve a remediation plan for such 



 14 

repairs and the Agreement shall not be terminated so long as the Customer diligently pursues 

said approved remediation plan.  

In the event Customer’s supplier’s inability to supply Customer's average day demand 

results in repeated or excessive Emergency Service hereunder, as determined by the Supplier 

in its reasonable discretion, the Supplier shall have the right to demand Customer submit and 

follow a reasonable remediation plan or take such other reasonable corrective action as 

requested by Supplier in writing, and in extreme cases if the remediation plan is not reasonable 

or is not followed, to terminate this Agreement on 180 days advance written notice to  

Customer (but not before the cost of the Interconnection Facilities has been fully 

amortized on Customer’s audited financial statements).  

Upon delivery of any such notice of termination, all amounts to be paid by Customer to 

the Supplier under this Agreement, shall be immediately due and payable to the Supplier. 

The Supplier may, in its discretion, provide Emergency Service beyond the limitations set  

forth in this Subsection. 

SECTION 6. SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND COVENANTS. 

A.  Construction of Interconnection Facilities. Both the Supplier and Customer will 

make a diligent effort to have the Interconnection Facilities completed by the dates specified 

in Section 3 of this Agreement, but neither the Supplier nor Customer do in any way hereby 

guaranty completion by such times. Supplier and Customer acknowledge and agree, however, 

that the Supplier shall not be liable to Customer for any damages occasioned by or in any way 

related to delays in the completion of the Supplier Connection Facilities or delays in the 



 15 

delivery of Lake Water through the Interconnection Facilities, and all payments provided for 

under this Agreement shall remain due and payable in accordance with the terms of this 

Agreement notwithstanding any such delay.  

B.  Lake Water Only. Except with the prior approval of Customer, the Supplier shall 

not deliver any water to the Customer System other than Lake Water. 
 

C.  Title to Lake Water. Title to all Lake Water supplied hereunder shall remain  

in the Supplier to the Point of Delivery and thereupon shall pass to Customer.  

D.  Water Quality. The Supplier shall supply Customer with Lake Water of a quality 

commensurate to that furnished to its resident customers and meeting the requirements and 

standards of any federal or state agency as shall have jurisdiction from time to time for the 

operation of public water supplies such as the Waterworks System. The Supplier bears no 

responsibility for the contamination of Lake Water or deterioration of water quality occurring 

beyond the Point of Delivery to Customer. Customer shall be responsible for ensuring that 

Lake Water supplied to Customer pursuant to this Agreement is properly treated after the Point 

of Delivery to Customer so as to meet the requirements and standards of any federal or state 

agency as shall have jurisdiction from time to time for the operation of public water supplies.  

E.  Maintenance and Operation of Customer System. Customer shall operate the 

Customer System and the Customer System Connection Facilities in such a manner as at no 

time to place the Supplier and the Waterworks System in jeopardy of failing to meet the 

regulations of any agency or governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Supplier's 

operation of its Waterworks System. Customer shall be responsible for the continuity, care, 



 16 

conservation, preservation, operation and maintenance of the Customer System and the 

Customer System Connection Facilities in a first rate condition, and Customer shall regularly 

and systematically perform such maintenance, repair, preservation, and replacement of any 

and all parts or portions thereof necessary to restore or preserve and protect the ability of the 

Customer System and the Customer System Connection Facilities to deliver water and 

function reliably as originally designed. The Supplier and Customer shall notify each other 

immediately of all emergency and other conditions which may directly or indirectly affect the 

Waterworks System, the Customer System, the Interconnection Facilities or the quantity or 

quality of the Lake Water received pursuant to this Agreement. Customer shall own and 

maintain the Customer System and the Customer System Connection Facilities, and all 

improvements and extensions of the Customer System and the Customer System 

Connection Facilities, in good repair and working order, will operate the Customer System 

and the Customer System Connection Facilities efficiently, and will punctually perform all 

duties with respect to the Customer System and the Customer System Connection Facilities 

as may be required by this Agreement, and by the Constitution and laws of the State of 

Illinois and all other applicable laws. In the event of any deterioration, injury, damage or other 

loss to the Customer System or the Customer System Connection Facilities affecting 

Customer's ability to deliver water to any of Customer's customers, Customer shall promptly 

restore the Customer System or the Customer System Connection Facilities and their 

capacity to so deliver water. In the event Supplier determines there is a pressure or water 

quality threat to Supplier’s Water System, Supplier shall have the Right to terminate service. 

In the event of a discontinuance, the Supplier shall use best efforts to provide the Customer 

with 24 hours notice in advance of the discontinuance. The Supplier reserves the right to 



 17 

terminate water service without notice in the event of an emergency.  

F.  Maintenance and Operation of Supplier Connection Facilities. Customer shall at 

its sole cost and expense maintain the Supplier Connection Facilities in accordance with the 

same conditions as in paragraph E above. In addition, and if applicable, the backflow preventer 

shall be inspected once a year by a certified Cross Connection Device Inspector. A copy of 

the inspection report shall be delivered to the Supplier within thirty (30) days of the inspection.  

G.  Insurance. Customer shall carry insurance or maintain self-insurance with 

respect to the Customer System and the Customer System Connection Facilities of the kinds 

and in the amounts that are customarily carried or maintained by parties operating similar 

properties, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, fire and other casualty 

and liability insurance or protection. All moneys received for loss under the insurance policies 

or on deposit as self-insurance reserves shall be used in making good the loss or damage in 

respect of which they were paid, whether by repairing the property damaged or replacing the 

property destroyed, and provision for making good such loss or damage or replacing the 

property destroyed shall be made within a reasonable time from date of loss. The proceeds 

derived from any and all policies or available from self-insurance reserves for public liability 

losses shall be used in paying or reimbursing any accounts from which payments for 

settlements, judgments or expenses were advanced. 

H.  Release and Indemnification. Customer hereby releases the Supplier from, 

agrees that the Supplier shall not be liable or responsible for, and agrees to indemnify and 

hold the Supplier, and all of its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, 

representatives, engineers and attorneys, harmless from: (i) any liabilities for any loss or 



 18 

damage to property or any injury to, or death of, any person that may be occasioned by or 

related to any cause whatsoever pertaining to the construction, maintenance, use or operation 

of the Customer System or the Interconnection Facilities; or (ii) any liabilities, losses or 

damages, or claims therefor, arising out of the failure, or claimed failure, of Customer to comply 

with its covenants or obligations contained in this Agreement; or (iii) any liabilities, losses or 

damages, or claims therefor, arising out of the delay, or claimed delay, in the commencement 

of, or the failure to provide, Emergency Service to Customer in the event of an Emergency 

Condition, including, in each such case, attorneys' fees and administrative expenses, except 

in each case to the extent caused by Supplier’s negligence. Customer agrees to indemnify 

and hold the Supplier harmless to the fullest extent permitted by law from any losses, costs, 

charges, expenses (including attorneys' fees and administrative expenses), judgments and 

liabilities incurred by the Supplier in connection with any action, suit or proceeding instituted 

or threatened by any third party in connection with this Agreement or the matters mentioned 

in this Subsection 6H, except in each case to the extent caused by Supplier’s negligence. If 

any such claim is asserted, the Supplier shall give prompt notice to Customer, and Customer, 

if requested by the Supplier, shall assume the defense thereof; it being understood, however, 

that Customer shall not settle or consent to the settlement of any such claim without the written 

consent of the Supplier. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver by the 

Supplier of any right, privilege or defense available to the Supplier under statutory or common 

law, including, but not limited to, the Illinois Local Governmental and Governmental Employees 

Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS 10/1-101 et seq., as amended. 

SECTION 7. PRICES AND TERMS OF PAYMENT.  



 19 

A.  Cost of Water Supplied. Customer shall pay to the Supplier, at the time specified 

in Subsection 7B below, for the cost of Lake Water supplied at a water rate stated as dollars 

or cents per 1,000 gallons that is equal to the Customer Rate Per 1,000 Gallons.  

B.  Bills and Due Date. The Supplier shall notify Customer of the total amount due 

from Customer under this Agreement for each month on or before the 10th day of the following 

month. Payment shall be due within 30 days after the date of notification.  

C.  Disputed Payments. If Customer desires to dispute any payment, or part thereof, 

due or claimed to be due under this Agreement, Customer shall nevertheless pay the full 

amount of any such payment when due and include with such payment written notification to 

the Supplier that charges are disputed, the grounds for dispute and the amount in dispute. No 

adjustment or relief on account of any disputed charges shall be made unless disputed 

charges are the subject of such notice within the time herein specified, or within a reasonable 

period from the time Customer knew or should have known of the facts giving rise to the 

dispute. It is expressly understood and agreed that no dispute over payments due or claimed 

to be due under this Agreement shall be referred to arbitration for review or settlement. Upon 

receipt of a notification of dispute, representatives of the Supplier shall meet promptly with 

representatives of Customer to resolve such dispute. If the Supplier and Customer determine 

that all or a portion of the disputed payment should be refunded to Customer, then such sum 

shall be refunded with interest thereon at the rate established in Subsection 7D below from 

the date such disputed payment was made.  

D.  Interest on Overdue Payments. If Customer shall fail to make any payment 

required under this Agreement on or before its due date, Customer shall be in default, and 



 20 

interest on the amount of such payment shall accrue, and be compounded on a monthly 

basis, during the period of non-payment at a rate not to exceed the Prime Rate plus two 

percent. Such interest shall accrue from the date such payment becomes due until paid in 

full with interest as herein specified. If such payment is not made by Customer within 30 days 

after the date such payment becomes due, then the Supplier, at its option and in its 

discretion, may reduce or discontinue delivery of Lake Water to the Customer System 

until the amount due is paid in full with interest as herein specified. The Supplier shall 

give notice to Customer not less than 20 days prior to the event of its intention to reduce 

or discontinue delivery of Lake Water in accordance with this Subsection 7D. If the 

Supplier reduces or discontinues the delivery of Lake Water under such circumstances, 

Customer shall nevertheless continue to be liable to pay all charges provided for herein. 

The rights specified in this Subsection 7D shall be in addition to all other rights and 

remedies available to the Supplier under this Agreement, at law, or in equity for breach of 

any of the provisions of this Agreement.  

SECTION 8. ASSIGNABILITY.  

Customer shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or interests herein 

without the advance written consent of the Supplier.  

The right to receive all payments that are required to be made by Customer to the 

Supplier in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement may be assigned by the Supplier 

to any trustee as provided in any bond ordinance to secure the payment of the principal of and 

the premium, if any, and interest on the bonds as those amounts come due, subject to the 

application of those payments as may be provided in any bond ordinance. Customer, upon 



 21 

notice of assignment to any such trustee, shall make all payments directly to such trustee. 

Further, the rights of the Supplier to enforce the provisions of this Agreement may be assigned 

to any such trustee and, in such event, such trustee shall have the right to enforce this 

Agreement at law or in equity with or without the further consent or participation of the Supplier. 

The Supplier also may retain the right to enforce this Agreement.  

 

SECTION 9. REGULATORY BODIES.  

The Supplier through this Agreement seeks to exercise and maintain all sovereign 

rights granted to it under and through the Constitution' and laws of the State of Illinois. This 

Agreement shall be subject to all valid rules, regulations and laws applicable hereto passed 

or promulgated by the United States of America, the State of Illinois, any governmental body 

or agency having lawful jurisdiction, and any authorized representative or agent of any of 

them; provided, however, that this clause shall not be construed as waiving the right of either 

party to challenge the validity of such rule, regulation or law on any basis, including the 

impairment of this Agreement.  

SECTION 10. NOTICES; EVIDENCE OF ACTIONS.  

A.  Notices. All notices or communications provided for herein shall be in writing 

and shall be delivered either in person or by United States mail, by certified mail with return 

receipt requested, postage prepaid, and addressed as follows:  

To the Supplier:  Northwest Water Commission Attn: Executive Director 1525 North Wolf 
Road Des Plaines, IL  60016  

To Customer:  Village of Morton Grove Attn: Village Administrator  
6101 Capulina Avenue Morton Grove, IL 60053  

until and unless other addresses or addressees are specified by notice given in accordance 



 22 

herewith.  

B.  Evidence of Actions. Any action hereunder to be taken by the Supplier or 

Customer may be evidenced by copy of official proceedings (including pertinent minutes, 

motions, resolutions, or ordinances, as applicable) duly certified by the Clerk of the Supplier 

or the Clerk of Customer.  

All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other instruments required 

or permitted to be made or given by Customer pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing, 

signed by a duly authorized officer, agent or attorney of Customer.  

SECTION 11. EFFECTIVE DATE; TERM AND TERMINATION.  

A.  Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective upon authorization and 

execution by both parties hereto.  

B.  Term. After taking effect, this Agreement shall continue in force and effect for a 

term of twenty (20) years, plus two (2) 10-year extensions unless extended upon prior written 

approval of the Supplier and Customer, provided however, if the Supplier is no longer able 

to supply water to Customer, Supplier has the right to terminate this Agreement upon one-

year written notice to Customer or if Supplier is not reasonably able to provide said one-year 

written notice, Suppler shall supply written notice as soon as reasonably possible.  

C.  Termination. This Agreement may be sooner terminated by the Supplier, in its 

reasonable discretion, (i) at any time the terms, conditions and limitations of this Agreement 

are not satisfied and Customer fails to cure such breach within ninety (90) days after written 



 23 

notice, or (ii) as provided in Subsection 5 of this Agreement. This Agreement may be sooner 

terminated by Customer, in its reasonable discretion, (i) at any time the terms, conditions and 

limitations of this Agreement are not satisfied, and Seller fails to cure such breach within ninety 

(90) days after written notice. In the event of any such termination, the Supplier shall have the 

right, but not the obligation, to disconnect the Customer System Connection Facilities from the 

Supplier Connection Facilities and the Waterworks System. All payment obligations and all 

representations, warranties, releases, and indemnities shall survive any such termination. The 

rights specified in this Subsection 11 shall be in addition to all other rights or remedies available 

under this Agreement, at law or in equity for breach of any provision of this Agreement.  

SECTION 12. GOVERNING LAW.  

This Agreement shall be construed exclusively under the applicable laws, but not the 

conflicts of laws rules, of the State of Illinois.  

SECTION 13. MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS.  

This Agreement shall not be modified or amended in any way except in writing 

approved by both parties hereto. No such modification or amendment shall materially impair 

or adversely affect the ability or obligation of Customer to make payments to the Supplier to 

meet the Supplier's obligations under the Source Contract, the Charter Customer Contract, 

and the Bond Ordinances.  

SECTION 14. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE.  

The Supplier and Customer hereby warrant and represent to the other that (i) it has the 

right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to agree to the terms, provisions 



 24 

and conditions set forth herein and to bind itself as set forth herein, (ii) all legal action needed 

to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement have been taken, and 

(iii) neither the execution of this Agreement nor the performance of the obligations assumed 

by it hereunder will (a) result in a breach or default, or cause an acceleration of liabilities or 

payments, under any agreement to which it is a party to which its property is bound or (b) 

violate any statute, law, restriction: court order or agreement to which it or any of its property 

is subject.  

SECTION 15. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.  

Exhibits A, B, C, C-1, C-2, D, E and F to this Agreement are hereby fully incorporated 

into this Agreement as substantive provisions of this Agreement.  

SECTION 16. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS.  

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to 

be an original, and each of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their respective corporate names to 

be subscribed hereto and their respective corporate seals to be affixed hereto and attested by 

their duly authorized officers, all on the date set opposite their respective corporate names.  

 
Village of Morton Grove  

By:  

Northwest Water Commission 

By:  



N
o

te
s

0
1

2
m
i

D
is

cl
a
im

er
: T

h
e 

G
IS

 C
o
n

so
rt

iu
m

 a
n

d
 M

G
P

 I
n

c.
 a

re
 n

o
t 

li
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

a
n

y 
u

se
, m

is
u

se
, m

o
d
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

d
is

cl
o
su

re
 o

f 
a
n

y 
m

a
p
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 u
n

d
er

 a
p
p
li
ca

b
le

 l
a
w

.  
T
h

is
 m

a
p
 i
s 

fo
r 

g
en

er
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 p
u

rp
o
se

s 
o
n

ly
. A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 i
s 

b
el

ie
ve

d
 t

o
 b

e 
g
en

er
a
ll
y 

a
cc

u
ra

te
, e

rr
o
rs

m
a
y 

ex
is

t 
a
n

d
 t

h
e 

u
se

r 
sh

o
u

ld
 i
n

d
ep

en
d
en

tl
y 

co
n

fi
rm

 f
o
r 

a
cc

u
ra

cy
. T

h
e 

m
a
p
 d

o
es

 n
o
t 

co
n

st
it

u
te

 a
 r

eg
u

la
to

ry
 d

et
er

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 i
s 

n
o
t 

a
 b

a
se

 f
o
r 

en
g
in

ee
ri

n
g
 d

es
ig

n
. A

 R
eg

is
te

re
d
 L

a
n

d
 S

u
rv

ey
o
r 

sh
o
u

ld
 b

e 
co

n
su

lt
ed

 t
o
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
p
re

ci
se

 l
o
ca

ti
o
n

 b
o
u

n
d
a
ri

es
 o

n
 t

h
e 

g
ro

u
n

d
.

P
ri

n
t 

D
a
te

: 
3

/2
3

/2
0

2
1

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

 -
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E
R

 W
A

T
E
R

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

L
e
g

e
n

d

W
at

er
 U

til
iti

es

W
at

er
 M

ai
n

Ab
an

do
ne

d

Ac
tiv

e



                                                                                         

 

1

SUPPLIER 
CONNECTION 
FACILITIES (SEE 
EXHIBIT C) 

MORTON 
GROVE 
BOOSTER 
STATION 

16” 
DIWM 

POINT OF 
CONNECTION 

N
W

C
 

B
O

O
S

T
E

R
 

EXHIBIT B 
EMERGENCY INTERCONNECTION OVERVIEW 

1

` 
POINT OF 
DELIVERY 

CUSTOMER 
CONNECTION 
FACILITIES (SEE 
EXHIBIT D) 

NOTES: 
 
1. PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS WILL 

GENERALLY BE LOCATED ON THE WEST 
HALF OF NATIONAL AVENUE. 
 

2. LOCATIONS OF ADDITIONAL 
OPERATIONAL AND MAINTENANCE 
APPURTENANCES SUCH AS 16” 
BUTTERFLY VALVES, FLUSHING 
HYDRANTS, AND OTHERS, WILL BE 
FINALIZED DURING DESIGN 
DEVELOPMENT.  THESE APPURTENANCES 
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT 
FOR SIMPLICITY. 



 

EXISTING NWC 60” 
TRANSMISSION MAIN 

SUPPLIER 
CONNECTION 
FACILITIES 

CONNECTION TO EXISTING 
TRANSMISSION MAIN 
(SEE EXHIBIT C1) 

VALVE / METER / BACKFLOW 
PREVENTION / BYPASS VAULT 
(SEE EXHIBIT C2) 

POINT OF DELIVERY 
(10’ DOWNSTREAM OF VAULT) 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLIER CONNECTION FACILITIES 



22 8

33.1505

40

22.5395

10" 60"8x10"8"8"

8
"

16
"
x
8
"

16
"

G
V

1
2

3

2

4

2

5

6

7

2

8

2

9

2

10

2

11

2

10

2

12

213

14

15

lmattson
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C-1:  CONNECTION DETAILS

lmattson
Typewritten Text
SCHEDULE OF 2021 CONNECTION IMPROVEMENTS

1.  8" MJ UNION COUPLING
2.  MJ RETAINER GLAND
3.  ±10' 8" DIP
4.  8" 45º HORIZONTAL FITTING
5.  ±5.5' 8" DIP
6.  8" GATE VALVE IN 4' DIA VALVE VAULT
7.  ±5.5' 8" DIP
8.  16"x8" MJ REDUCER FITTING
9.  ±2' 16" DIP
10. 16" 45º VERTICAL FITTING
11.  ±6' 16" DIP AT 45º VERTICAL ANGLE
12.  ±4' 16" DIP
13.  16"x6" MJ TEE FITTING
14.  6" HYDRANT LEAD
15.  16" MJ PLUG

lmattson
Oval

lmattson
Line



M

SUMP

16"16" 12" 12"

VALVE

12" GATE

VALVE

12" GATE

FLOW METER

12" MAGNETIC

CONTROL VALVE

12" FLOW 

CONTROL ASSEMBLY

VALVE BACKFLOW 

12" DOUBLE CHECK

LINE

12" BYPASS

HATCHES

EQUIPMENT / ACCESS

lmattson
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C-2:  PRELIMINARY METER / FLOW CONTROL / BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICES DETAIL



 

      2
0

” 
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
 

FL
U

SH
IN

G
 

H
Y

D
R

A
N

T 

1
2

” 
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
 

1
6

” 
V

LV
 (

TY
P

) 

B
O

O
ST

ER
 P

U
M

P
 

ST
A

TI
O

N
 

1
6

” 
1

6
” 

1
2

” 

2
0

” 

FI
LL

 V
A

LV
E 

V
A

U
LT

 
M

ET
ER

 V
A

U
LT

 

FI
LL

 
V

A
LV

E 
V

A
U

LT
 

M
ET

ER
 V

A
U

LT
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 D
 

C
U

ST
O

M
ER

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 



 31 

EXHIBIT E - ILLUSTRATIVE SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 

Cumulative 
Days 

Anticipated 
Elapsed 

Days 
Example Dates Task/Project Action 

Start 0 02/01/2022 Project Bidding Documents & Plans - Pre-Final Submittal 
14 14 02/01/22 - 02/15/22 Bidding Document & Plan Review 
28 14 02/16/22 – 03/02/22 Final Submittal of Bidding Document & Plan 

54 26 03/07/22 
03/10/22 – 03/24/22 

Contact Advertising Agencies 
Active Advertising 

58 4 03/28/22 Bid Opening 
72 14 04/11/22 Board Approval 
86 14 04/25/22 Notice to Proceed 

142 56 06/20/22 Submittal Period (8 weeks) 
282 140 06/20/22 - 11/07/22 Procurement (20 weeks) 
312 30 11/07/22 - 12/05/22 Station Installation and Commissioning (4 weeks) 
 

  



 32 

EXHIBIT F SEQUENCE OF OPERATIONS  

Interconnection Pressures  
The Northwest Water Commission (NWC) will provide an estimated delivery pressure to the 
Village of Morton Grove (Morton Grove) of approximately 8-14 psi without the booster pump 
station operating. However, there may be times (e.g. during maximum day demand) when 
NWC’s Booster Pumping Station needs to be operated for their own needs. In these 
situations, NWC will provide a pressure of approximately 28 to 46 psi. Note that the above 
pressures include estimated head losses through the meter station and backflow preventer. 
Should the booster pump station be required to operate (e.g. to meet IEPA requirements, to 
prevent Morton Grove pump cavitation, etc.), Morton Grove will pay for all costs (power, 
staffing, etc.) associated with the operation of the booster pump station.   
 
General Sequence of Operations (NWC supplies Morton Grove)  
1. Morton Grove will contact NWC to request operation of the interconnection facilities. The 

point of contact will be the NWC Control Room/Operator who will contact the appropriate 
personnel. 

 

The decision sequence will be as follows: 
1. A determination will be made if NWC is able to supply water to Morton Grove.  
2. NWC will determine whether or not the NWC booster pump station is required to be 

operated.  
3. If the NWC booster pump station is required, NWC will request the City of Evanston to 

operate the station.  
4. NWC will manually open the 8-inch diameter valve adjacent to their existing booster 

pump station in Morton Grove.  
5. NWC will open (remotely or otherwise) their future control valve to supply Morton Grove.  
6. Morton Grove will begin operations of their own facilities, including, but not limited to 

opening valves, starting pumps (if needed), etc.  
7. Morton Grove will notify NWC when they no longer need future water.  
8. NWC will cease their supply to Morton Grove by closing the control valve and existing 8-

inch diameter gate valve. 
 

Assumptions  
1. NWC has no backup generator or power.  
2. The interconnect will be only used for NWC and Morton Grove (i.e. the water will not be 

used to supply Niles or the Morton Grove-Niles Water Commission).  
3. The meter vault will contain a control valve, which will be operated by NWC. This will 

enable NWC to limit flow to Morton Grove to a maximum of 3.88 mgd.  
4. The interconnect will be operated/exercised on a regular basis, under non-emergency 

conditions at a mutually agreed upon time interval and under mutually agreed upon 
conditions.  

5. Two buried, flush hydrants will be included in the interconnection facilities.  
6. A minimum of hourly communication will take place during use of the interconnect. 
Interconnection Facilities Access 
During any required access of the Interconnection Facilities, the Northwest Water 
Commission (NWC) and the Village of Morton Grove shall jointly meet on site for mutual 
access of the facilities. 



Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Reviewed by: Joe Dahm, Director Public Works 
Prepared by: Chris Tomich, Village Engineer 
   

Legislative Summary  
 

Resolution 22-08 
 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH A LAMP CONCRETE CONTRACTORS, INC.  
FOR THE DEMPSTER STREET STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

Introduced: February 28, 2022 
  
Purpose: To authorize the Village Administrator to execute a contract with A Lamp Concrete 

Contractors, Inc. for Dempster Street Streetscape Improvements Project.  
  
Background: The Village completed streetscape improvements in 2011 along both sides of 

Dempster Street from Ferris Avenue to Central Avenue. Resolution 18-08 
authorized a task order with Ciorba Group, Inc. to design streetscape improvements 
to extend the streetscape along the south side of Dempster Street from Lincoln 
Avenue to Narragansett Avenue. 
 
Bids were solicited on the Village website for twelve business days. Forty-one 
entities downloaded contract documents. Seven bids were received and opened on 
February 17, 2022. The tabulation of bids is attached as Exhibit “A”. A Lamp 
Concrete Contractors, Inc. submitted the lowest bid. The qualifications of A Lamp 
Concrete Contractors, Inc. have successfully completed similar improvements for 
the Village. This contract conforms to purchasing requirements of the Village. This 
contract must conform to the requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act. 

  
Programs, Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Public Works Department 

  
Fiscal Impact: $194,724.30 for the contract plus up to $50,000 in changes order approved by the 

Village Administrator 
  
Source of Funds: 2022 General Fund Account Numbers 15-10-79-57-1031 
  

Workload Impact: Construction engineering to be performed by Ciorba Group, Inc. The Public 
Works Department will provide overall management of the project. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special Considerations 
or Requirements: 

None 
 

  
 



RESOLUTION 22-08 
 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH A LAMP CONCRETE CONTRACTORS, INC.  
FOR THE DEMPSTER STREET STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  

 
  

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village completed streetscape improvements in 2011 along both sides of 

Dempster Street from Ferris Avenue to Central Avenue to stimulate economic development and improve 

the appearance of this commercial corridor; and 

WHEREAS, a variety of factors contributed to not extending the streetscape improvements 

westward to Lincoln Avenue at that time; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution 18-08 authorized a task order with Ciorba Group, Inc. to design 

streetscape improvements that would extend the streetscape along the south side of Dempster Street from 

Lincoln Avenue to Narragansett Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department advertised on the Village website beginning February 

2, 2022 inviting bids for “Dempster Street Streetscape Improvements Project”; and 

WHEREAS, the bidding procedures comply with purchasing requirements of the Municipal Code, 

Title 1, Chapter 9, Article A; and  

WHEREAS, forty-one entities downloaded plans from the Village’s website for this contract; and 

WHEREAS, seven bids were received and publicly opened at the Public works Facility on 

February 17, 2022, with the bid results shown in Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, this contract must conform to the requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act; and  

WHEREAS, A Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc. submitted the lowest bid; and 

WHEREAS, A Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc. has successfully completed many similar projects 

for the Village, including the 2010 streetscape improvements on Dempster Street from Ferris Avenue to 

Central Avenue; and  

WHEREAS, the low bid is $194,724.30 and is $1,470.80 higher than the Engineer’s Estimate of 

Cost; and 

WHEREAS, it is reasonable to anticipate changes to the constructed improvements may be needed 

due to unanticipated circumstances and estimated to be up to $50,000; and 



WHEREAS, funding for the above work in the amount of $350,000 is allocated for Dempster 

Street Streetscape design engineering, construction, and construction engineering within the 2022 

Adopted Budget Lehigh-Ferris TIF District Fund Account Numbers 15-10-79-57-1031. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

  

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

 SECTION 2: The Corporate Authorities accept the bid of A Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc. of 

Addison, Illinois in the amount of $194,724.30. 

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a contract with A Lamp 

Concrete Contractors, Inc. for Dempster Street Streetscape Improvements Project in the amount of 

$194,724.30. 

 SECTION 4: The Village Administrator is authorized to issue change orders up to an amount of 

$50,000.00 in order to construct these improvements in a manner that is in the best interest of the Village, 

motoring public, and property owners. 

SECTION 5: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works or their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement the contract for Dempster Street Streetscape 

Improvements Project. 

 SECTION 6: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

 
PASSED this 28th day of February 2022 

Trustee Grear    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 

APPROVED by me this 28th day of February 2022 

 
____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

 



APPROVED and FILED in my office this 
1st day of March 2022 
 
 
       
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



V
il

la
ge

 o
f 

M
or

to
n

 G
ro

ve
,  

C
oo

k
 C

ou
n

ty
, I

li
n

oi
s

D
E

M
P

S
T

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
C

A
P

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 P

R
O

JE
C

T

B
id

 T
ab

u
la

ti
o

n

B
id

 O
pe

ni
ng

: 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

17
, 2

02
2 

10
:0

0 
a.

m
.

P
A

Y
 

IT
E

M
P

A
Y

 I
T

E
M

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
U

N
IT

Q
U

A
N

T
IT

Y
U

N
IT

 C
O

S
T

IT
E

M
 C

O
S

T
U

N
IT

 C
O

S
T

IT
E

M
 C

O
S

T
U

N
IT

 C
O

S
T

IT
E

M
 C

O
S

T
U

N
IT

 C
O

S
T

IT
E

M
 C

O
S

T
U

N
IT

 C
O

S
T

IT
E

M
 C

O
S

T

20
10

10
00

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 F

E
N

C
E

F
O

O
T

20
$1

5.
00

$3
00

.0
0

$2
0.

00
$4

00
.0

0
$1

.0
0

$2
0.

00
$1

0.
00

$2
00

.0
0

$1
6.

00
$3

20
.0

0

20
10

17
00

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 W
A

T
E

R
IN

G
U

N
IT

1
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

.0
0

$1
.0

0
$1

.0
0

$1
.0

0
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
$1

.0
0

$1
.0

0

20
20

01
00

E
A

R
T

H
 E

X
C

A
V

A
T

IO
N

C
U

 Y
D

83
$6

0.
00

$4
,9

80
.0

0
$4

0.
00

$3
,3

20
.0

0
$6

8.
00

$5
,6

44
.0

0
$5

0.
00

$4
,1

50
.0

0
$6

8.
00

$5
,6

44
.0

0

42
30

04
00

P
O

R
T

L
A

N
D

 C
E

M
E

N
T

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 D
R

IV
E

W
A

Y
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
, 8

 I
N

C
H

S
Q

 Y
D

69
$5

0.
00

$3
,4

50
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$6

,9
00

.0
0

$8
5.

00
$5

,8
65

.0
0

$7
5.

00
$5

,1
75

.0
0

$9
7.

00
$6

,6
93

.0
0

42
40

02
00

P
O

R
T

L
A

N
D

 C
E

M
E

N
T

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 5

 I
N

C
H

S
Q

 F
T

44
58

$8
.0

0
$3

5,
66

4.
00

$1
0.

00
$4

4,
58

0.
00

$8
.0

0
$3

5,
66

4.
00

$1
0.

00
$4

4,
58

0.
00

$1
1.

50
$5

1,
26

7.
00

42
40

08
00

D
E

T
E

C
T

A
B

L
E

 W
A

R
N

IN
G

S
S

Q
 F

T
11

4
$4

2.
00

$4
,7

88
.0

0
$2

0.
00

$2
,2

80
.0

0
$3

5.
00

$3
,9

90
.0

0
$2

7.
50

$3
,1

35
.0

0
$3

3.
00

$3
,7

62
.0

0

44
00

02
00

D
R

IV
E

W
A

Y
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L

S
Q

 Y
D

91
$2

0.
00

$1
,8

20
.0

0
$4

0.
00

$3
,6

40
.0

0
$2

5.
00

$2
,2

75
.0

0
$2

2.
50

$2
,0

47
.5

0
$2

8.
00

$2
,5

48
.0

0

44
00

03
00

C
U

R
B

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
F

O
O

T
63

$1
0.

00
$6

30
.0

0
$4

0.
00

$2
,5

20
.0

0
$1

5.
00

$9
45

.0
0

$1
5.

00
$9

45
.0

0
$1

6.
00

$1
,0

08
.0

0

44
00

05
00

C
O

M
B

IN
A

T
IO

N
 C

U
R

B
 A

N
D

 G
U

T
T

E
R

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
F

O
O

T
44

$1
2.

00
$5

28
.0

0
$4

0.
00

$1
,7

60
.0

0
$2

0.
00

$8
80

.0
0

$2
5.

00
$1

,1
00

.0
0

$1
6.

00
$7

04
.0

0

44
00

06
00

S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L

S
Q

 F
T

30
44

$4
.0

0
$1

2,
17

6.
00

$4
.0

0
$1

2,
17

6.
00

$2
.0

0
$6

,0
88

.0
0

$2
.7

5
$8

,3
71

.0
0

$2
.5

0
$7

,6
10

.0
0

44
20

17
49

C
L

A
S

S
 D

 P
A

T
C

H
E

S
, T

Y
P

E
 I

, 9
 I

N
C

H
S

Q
 Y

D
11

$1
50

.0
0

$1
,6

50
.0

0
$1

75
.0

0
$1

,9
25

.0
0

$1
30

.0
0

$1
,4

30
.0

0
$7

5.
00

$8
25

.0
0

$2
68

.0
0

$2
,9

48
.0

0

60
60

06
05

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 C
U

R
B

, T
Y

P
E

 B
F

O
O

T
63

$2
2.

00
$1

,3
86

.0
0

$6
5.

00
$4

,0
95

.0
0

$3
6.

00
$2

,2
68

.0
0

$4
0.

00
$2

,5
20

.0
0

$5
4.

00
$3

,4
02

.0
0

60
60

38
00

C
O

M
B

IN
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 C

U
R

B
 A

N
D

 G
U

T
T

E
R

, T
Y

P
E

 B
-6

.1
2

F
O

O
T

17
$2

5.
00

$4
25

.0
0

$7
0.

00
$1

,1
90

.0
0

$7
3.

00
$1

,2
41

.0
0

$4
0.

00
$6

80
.0

0
$8

1.
00

$1
,3

77
.0

0

60
60

50
00

C
O

M
B

IN
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 C

U
R

B
 A

N
D

 G
U

T
T

E
R

, T
Y

P
E

 B
-6

.2
4

F
O

O
T

27
$3

0.
00

$8
10

.0
0

$7
5.

00
$2

,0
25

.0
0

$8
6.

00
$2

,3
22

.0
0

$4
5.

00
$1

,2
15

.0
0

$8
4.

00
$2

,2
68

.0
0

63
20

03
10

G
U

A
R

D
R

A
IL

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
F

O
O

T
13

$7
5.

00
$9

75
.0

0
$5

0.
00

$6
50

.0
0

$2
5.

00
$3

25
.0

0
$2

0.
00

$2
60

.0
0

$3
3.

00
$4

29
.0

0

67
10

01
00

M
O

B
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
L

 S
U

M
1

$7
,0

00
.0

0
$7

,0
00

.0
0

$1
7,

51
0.

00
$1

7,
51

0.
00

$1
2,

00
0.

00
$1

2,
00

0.
00

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$1

0,
00

0.
00

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$1

0,
00

0.
00

70
10

04
60

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
, S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 7

01
30

6
L

 S
U

M
1

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$6

,0
00

.0
0

$7
23

.0
0

$7
23

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$7
50

.0
0

$7
50

.0
0

$2
0,

00
0.

00
$2

0,
00

0.
00

70
10

26
25

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
, S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 7

01
60

6
L

 S
U

M
1

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$6

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,6

26
.0

0
$1

,6
26

.0
0

$8
,0

00
.0

0
$8

,0
00

.0
0

$1
2,

50
0.

00
$1

2,
50

0.
00

$3
,5

00
.0

0
$3

,5
00

.0
0

70
10

26
40

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
, S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 7

01
80

1
L

 S
U

M
1

$4
,0

00
.0

0
$4

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,2

65
.0

0
$1

,2
65

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$2
,2

00
.0

0
$2

,2
00

.0
0

$3
,5

00
.0

0
$3

,5
00

.0
0

81
02

82
40

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

O
N

D
U

IT
, G

A
L

V
A

N
IZ

E
D

 S
T

E
E

L
, 4

" 
D

IA
.

F
O

O
T

16
2

$5
0.

00
$8

,1
00

.0
0

$9
3.

00
$1

5,
06

6.
00

$1
02

.5
0

$1
6,

60
5.

00
$1

05
.0

0
$1

7,
01

0.
00

$1
10

.0
0

$1
7,

82
0.

00

81
02

87
50

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

O
N

D
U

IT
, C

O
IL

A
B

L
E

 N
O

N
M

E
T

A
L

L
IC

 C
O

N
D

U
IT

, 2
" 

D
IA

.
F

O
O

T
48

9
$2

0.
00

$9
,7

80
.0

0
$2

4.
00

$1
1,

73
6.

00
$2

6.
50

$1
2,

95
8.

50
$2

7.
00

$1
3,

20
3.

00
$2

8.
00

$1
3,

69
2.

00

81
70

21
30

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 C

A
B

L
E

 I
N

 C
O

N
D

U
IT

, 6
00

V
 (

X
L

P
-T

Y
P

E
 U

S
E

) 
1/

C
 N

O
. 6

F
O

O
T

67
1

$2
.0

0
$1

,3
42

.0
0

$1
.9

2
$1

,2
88

.3
2

$2
.1

5
$1

,4
42

.6
5

$2
.1

0
$1

,4
09

.1
0

$2
.3

0
$1

,5
43

.3
0

81
70

21
40

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 C

A
B

L
E

 I
N

 C
O

N
D

U
IT

, 6
00

V
 (

X
L

P
-T

Y
P

E
 U

S
E

) 
1/

C
 N

O
. 4

F
O

O
T

40
26

$2
.2

5
$9

,0
58

.5
0

$2
.3

7
$9

,5
41

.6
2

$2
.6

5
$1

0,
66

8.
90

$2
.6

5
$1

0,
66

8.
90

$2
.8

0
$1

1,
27

2.
80

83
60

03
00

L
IG

H
T

 P
O

L
E

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
, 3

0"
 D

IA
M

E
T

E
R

F
O

O
T

57
$2

50
.0

0
$1

4,
25

0.
00

$2
60

.0
0

$1
4,

82
0.

00
$2

86
.0

0
$1

6,
30

2.
00

$2
90

.0
0

$1
6,

53
0.

00
$3

25
.0

0
$1

8,
52

5.
00

84
20

05
00

R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 U

N
IT

, S
A

L
V

A
G

E
E

A
C

H
3

$5
50

.0
0

$1
,6

50
.0

0
$9

00
.0

0
$2

,7
00

.0
0

$9
90

.0
0

$2
,9

70
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
90

.0
0

$3
,2

70
.0

0

84
40

01
05

R
E

L
O

C
A

T
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 U
N

IT
E

A
C

H
2

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$3

,0
00

.0
0

$9
00

.0
0

$1
,8

00
.0

0
$9

90
.0

0
$1

,9
80

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$2

,0
00

.0
0

$7
20

.0
0

$1
,4

40
.0

0

85
00

02
00

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 O
F

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

 S
IG

N
A

L
 I

N
S

T
A

L
L

A
T

IO
N

E
A

C
H

1
$2

,2
50

.0
0

$2
,2

50
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
$5

50
.0

0
$5

50
.0

0
$6

00
.0

0
$6

00
.0

0
$7

00
.0

0
$7

00
.0

0

89
50

23
00

R
E

M
O

V
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 C

A
B

L
E

 F
R

O
M

 C
O

N
D

U
IT

F
O

O
T

33
75

$1
.0

0
$3

,3
75

.0
0

$0
.6

6
$2

,2
27

.5
0

$0
.7

5
$2

,5
31

.2
5

$0
.7

4
$2

,4
97

.5
0

$0
.8

0
$2

,7
00

.0
0

89
50

23
76

R
E

B
U

IL
D

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 H
A

N
D

H
O

L
E

E
A

C
H

3
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$7
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,7
90

.0
0

$8
,3

70
.0

0
$3

,0
69

.0
0

$9
,2

07
.0

0
$3

,1
00

.0
0

$9
,3

00
.0

0
$3

,3
00

.0
0

$9
,9

00
.0

0

89
50

23
80

R
E

M
O

V
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 H
A

N
D

H
O

L
E

E
A

C
H

2
$6

00
.0

0
$1

,2
00

.0
0

$5
90

.0
0

$1
,1

80
.0

0
$6

49
.0

0
$1

,2
98

.0
0

$6
55

.0
0

$1
,3

10
.0

0
$7

20
.0

0
$1

,4
40

.0
0

89
50

23
85

R
E

M
O

V
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
E

A
C

H
2

$5
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$5

90
.0

0
$1

,1
80

.0
0

$6
49

.0
0

$1
,2

98
.0

0
$6

55
.0

0
$1

,3
10

.0
0

$7
20

.0
0

$1
,4

40
.0

0

X
14

00
23

2
A

E
S

T
H

E
T

IC
 L

U
M

IN
A

IR
E

 (
IN

S
T

A
L

L
 O

N
L

Y
)

E
A

C
H

5
$2

,2
00

.0
0

$1
1,

00
0.

00
$2

80
.0

0
$1

,4
00

.0
0

$3
08

.0
0

$1
,5

40
.0

0
$3

15
.0

0
$1

,5
75

.0
0

$3
45

.0
0

$1
,7

25
.0

0

X
25

20
70

0
S

O
D

D
IN

G
, S

P
E

C
IA

L
S

Q
 Y

D
28

$2
2.

00
$6

16
.0

0
$1

45
.0

0
$4

,0
60

.0
0

$4
0.

00
$1

,1
20

.0
0

$3
5.

00
$9

80
.0

0
$7

6.
00

$2
,1

28
.0

0

X
40

22
00

0
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 (
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L

 E
N

T
R

A
N

C
E

)
E

A
C

H
3

$4
00

.0
0

$1
,2

00
.0

0
$1

.0
0

$3
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,2
80

.0
0

$3
,8

40
.0

0

X
83

60
12

0
L

IG
H

T
 P

O
L

E
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

, S
P

E
C

IA
L

E
A

C
H

1
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,0
50

.0
0

$2
,0

50
.0

0
$2

,2
55

.0
0

$2
,2

55
.0

0
$2

,2
75

.0
0

$2
,2

75
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0

X
X

00
74

50
O

R
N

A
M

E
N

T
A

L
 L

IG
H

T
 P

O
L

E
, I

N
S

T
A

L
L

 O
N

L
Y

E
A

C
H

5
$2

,2
00

.0
0

$1
1,

00
0.

00
$1

,8
00

.0
0

$9
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,9
80

.0
0

$9
,9

00
.0

0
$2

,0
00

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$2

,2
00

.0
0

$1
1,

00
0.

00

Z
00

04
53

4
H

O
T

-M
IX

 A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 D

R
IV

E
W

A
Y

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

, 9
"

S
Q

 Y
D

90
$6

5.
00

$5
,8

50
.0

0
$1

35
.0

0
$1

2,
15

0.
00

$8
0.

00
$7

,2
00

.0
0

$1
65

.0
0

$1
4,

85
0.

00
$9

6.
00

$8
,6

40
.0

0

Z
00

33
02

8
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
C

A
L

 M
O

3
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$4
,5

00
.0

0
$8

00
.0

0
$2

,4
00

.0
0

$8
80

.0
0

$2
,6

40
.0

0
$9

00
.0

0
$2

,7
00

.0
0

$9
80

.0
0

$2
,9

40
.0

0

S
P

20
P

R
E

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 V

ID
E

O
L

 S
U

M
1

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$8
00

.0
0

$8
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

A
p

p
a

re
n

t 
L

o
w

 B
id

d
e

r:
  

A
la

m
p

 C
o

n
c

re
te

 C
o

n
tr

a
c

to
rs

, 
In

c
A

p
p

a
re

n
t 

L
o

w
 B

id
 A

m
o

u
n

t:
  

E
n

g
in

e
e

r'
s

 E
s

ti
m

a
te

 o
f 

C
o

s
t:

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 E

n
g

in
e

e
r'

s
 E

s
ti

m
a

te
 o

f 
C

o
s

t:
$1

93
,2

53
.5

0
$1

,4
70

.8
0

$
1

9
4

,7
2

4
.3

0

A
S

-R
E

A
D

 P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L

 A
M

O
U

N
T

$2
10

,5
58

.4
4

19
00

 W
ri

gh
t 

B
ou

le
va

rd

$1
94

,7
24

.3
0

$2
13

,9
22

.0
0

$1
94

,7
24

.3
0

$2
13

,9
22

.0
0

W
oo

ds
to

ck
, I

L
 6

00
98

C
O

R
R

E
C

T
E

D
 T

O
T

A
L

 P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L

 A
M

O
U

N
T

$1
93

,2
53

.5
0

$2
10

,5
58

.4
4

M
Y

S
, I

nc
or

pe
ra

te
d

M
ar

ta
m

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 I

nc
E

ng
in

ee
r'

s 
E

st
im

at
e

A
ll

ia
nc

e 
C

on
tr

ac
to

rs
, I

nc
.

11
66

 L
ak

e 
A

ve
nu

e
S

ch
au

m
bu

rg
, I

L
 6

01
93

P
al

os
 H

ei
gh

ts
, I

L
 6

04
63

E
lg

in
, I

L
 6

01
20

A
la

m
p 

C
on

cr
et

e 
C

on
tr

ac
to

rs
, I

nc

$2
44

,9
97

.1
0

$2
44

,9
97

.1
0

12
41

6 
S

 H
ar

le
m

 A
ve

, S
te

 1
01

12
00

 G
as

ke
t 

D
ri

ve

EX
H

IB
IT

 "
A

"



V
il

la
ge

 o
f 

M
or

to
n

 G
ro

ve
,  

C
oo

k
 C

ou
n

ty
, I

li
n

oi
s

D
E

M
P

S
T

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
C

A
P

E
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 P

R
O

JE
C

T

B
id

 T
ab

u
la

ti
o

n

B
id

 O
pe

ni
ng

: 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

17
, 2

02
2 

10
:0

0 
a.

m
.

P
A

Y
 

IT
E

M
P

A
Y

 I
T

E
M

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
U

N
IT

Q
U

A
N

T
IT

Y
U

N
IT

 C
O

S
T

IT
E

M
 C

O
S

T

20
10

10
00

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 F

E
N

C
E

F
O

O
T

20
$1

5.
00

$3
00

.0
0

20
10

17
00

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
L

 W
A

T
E

R
IN

G
U

N
IT

1
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0

20
20

01
00

E
A

R
T

H
 E

X
C

A
V

A
T

IO
N

C
U

 Y
D

83
$6

0.
00

$4
,9

80
.0

0

42
30

04
00

P
O

R
T

L
A

N
D

 C
E

M
E

N
T

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 D
R

IV
E

W
A

Y
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
, 8

 I
N

C
H

S
Q

 Y
D

69
$5

0.
00

$3
,4

50
.0

0

42
40

02
00

P
O

R
T

L
A

N
D

 C
E

M
E

N
T

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 5

 I
N

C
H

S
Q

 F
T

44
58

$8
.0

0
$3

5,
66

4.
00

42
40

08
00

D
E

T
E

C
T

A
B

L
E

 W
A

R
N

IN
G

S
S

Q
 F

T
11

4
$4

2.
00

$4
,7

88
.0

0

44
00

02
00

D
R

IV
E

W
A

Y
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L

S
Q

 Y
D

91
$2

0.
00

$1
,8

20
.0

0

44
00

03
00

C
U

R
B

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
F

O
O

T
63

$1
0.

00
$6

30
.0

0

44
00

05
00

C
O

M
B

IN
A

T
IO

N
 C

U
R

B
 A

N
D

 G
U

T
T

E
R

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
F

O
O

T
44

$1
2.

00
$5

28
.0

0

44
00

06
00

S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L

S
Q

 F
T

30
44

$4
.0

0
$1

2,
17

6.
00

44
20

17
49

C
L

A
S

S
 D

 P
A

T
C

H
E

S
, T

Y
P

E
 I

, 9
 I

N
C

H
S

Q
 Y

D
11

$1
50

.0
0

$1
,6

50
.0

0

60
60

06
05

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 C
U

R
B

, T
Y

P
E

 B
F

O
O

T
63

$2
2.

00
$1

,3
86

.0
0

60
60

38
00

C
O

M
B

IN
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 C

U
R

B
 A

N
D

 G
U

T
T

E
R

, T
Y

P
E

 B
-6

.1
2

F
O

O
T

17
$2

5.
00

$4
25

.0
0

60
60

50
00

C
O

M
B

IN
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 C

U
R

B
 A

N
D

 G
U

T
T

E
R

, T
Y

P
E

 B
-6

.2
4

F
O

O
T

27
$3

0.
00

$8
10

.0
0

63
20

03
10

G
U

A
R

D
R

A
IL

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
F

O
O

T
13

$7
5.

00
$9

75
.0

0

67
10

01
00

M
O

B
IL

IZ
A

T
IO

N
L

 S
U

M
1

$7
,0

00
.0

0
$7

,0
00

.0
0

70
10

04
60

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
, S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 7

01
30

6
L

 S
U

M
1

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$6

,0
00

.0
0

70
10

26
25

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
, S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 7

01
60

6
L

 S
U

M
1

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$6

,0
00

.0
0

70
10

26
40

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
, S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 7

01
80

1
L

 S
U

M
1

$4
,0

00
.0

0
$4

,0
00

.0
0

81
02

82
40

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

O
N

D
U

IT
, G

A
L

V
A

N
IZ

E
D

 S
T

E
E

L
, 4

" 
D

IA
.

F
O

O
T

16
2

$5
0.

00
$8

,1
00

.0
0

81
02

87
50

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

O
N

D
U

IT
, C

O
IL

A
B

L
E

 N
O

N
M

E
T

A
L

L
IC

 C
O

N
D

U
IT

, 2
" 

D
IA

.
F

O
O

T
48

9
$2

0.
00

$9
,7

80
.0

0

81
70

21
30

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 C

A
B

L
E

 I
N

 C
O

N
D

U
IT

, 6
00

V
 (

X
L

P
-T

Y
P

E
 U

S
E

) 
1/

C
 N

O
. 6

F
O

O
T

67
1

$2
.0

0
$1

,3
42

.0
0

81
70

21
40

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 C

A
B

L
E

 I
N

 C
O

N
D

U
IT

, 6
00

V
 (

X
L

P
-T

Y
P

E
 U

S
E

) 
1/

C
 N

O
. 4

F
O

O
T

40
26

$2
.2

5
$9

,0
58

.5
0

83
60

03
00

L
IG

H
T

 P
O

L
E

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
, 3

0"
 D

IA
M

E
T

E
R

F
O

O
T

57
$2

50
.0

0
$1

4,
25

0.
00

84
20

05
00

R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 O

F
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 U

N
IT

, S
A

L
V

A
G

E
E

A
C

H
3

$5
50

.0
0

$1
,6

50
.0

0

84
40

01
05

R
E

L
O

C
A

T
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 U
N

IT
E

A
C

H
2

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$3

,0
00

.0
0

85
00

02
00

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 O
F

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

 S
IG

N
A

L
 I

N
S

T
A

L
L

A
T

IO
N

E
A

C
H

1
$2

,2
50

.0
0

$2
,2

50
.0

0

89
50

23
00

R
E

M
O

V
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 C

A
B

L
E

 F
R

O
M

 C
O

N
D

U
IT

F
O

O
T

33
75

$1
.0

0
$3

,3
75

.0
0

89
50

23
76

R
E

B
U

IL
D

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 H
A

N
D

H
O

L
E

E
A

C
H

3
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$7
,5

00
.0

0

89
50

23
80

R
E

M
O

V
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 H
A

N
D

H
O

L
E

E
A

C
H

2
$6

00
.0

0
$1

,2
00

.0
0

89
50

23
85

R
E

M
O

V
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
E

A
C

H
2

$5
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0

X
14

00
23

2
A

E
S

T
H

E
T

IC
 L

U
M

IN
A

IR
E

 (
IN

S
T

A
L

L
 O

N
L

Y
)

E
A

C
H

5
$2

,2
00

.0
0

$1
1,

00
0.

00

X
25

20
70

0
S

O
D

D
IN

G
, S

P
E

C
IA

L
S

Q
 Y

D
28

$2
2.

00
$6

16
.0

0

X
40

22
00

0
T

E
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 (
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L

 E
N

T
R

A
N

C
E

)
E

A
C

H
3

$4
00

.0
0

$1
,2

00
.0

0

X
83

60
12

0
L

IG
H

T
 P

O
L

E
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

, S
P

E
C

IA
L

E
A

C
H

1
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0

X
X

00
74

50
O

R
N

A
M

E
N

T
A

L
 L

IG
H

T
 P

O
L

E
, I

N
S

T
A

L
L

 O
N

L
Y

E
A

C
H

5
$2

,2
00

.0
0

$1
1,

00
0.

00

Z
00

04
53

4
H

O
T

-M
IX

 A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 D

R
IV

E
W

A
Y

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

, 9
"

S
Q

 Y
D

90
$6

5.
00

$5
,8

50
.0

0

Z
00

33
02

8
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 L

IG
H

T
IN

G
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
C

A
L

 M
O

3
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$4
,5

00
.0

0

S
P

20
P

R
E

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 V

ID
E

O
L

 S
U

M
1

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$1

,5
00

.0
0

A
p

p
a

re
n

t 
L

o
w

 B
id

d
e

r:
  

A
la

m
p

 C
o

n
c

re
te

 C
o

n
tr

a
c

to
rs

, 
In

c
A

p
p

a
re

n
t 

L
o

w
 B

id
 A

m
o

u
n

t:
  

E
n

g
in

e
e

r'
s

 E
s

ti
m

a
te

 o
f 

C
o

s
t:

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 E

n
g

in
e

e
r'

s
 E

s
ti

m
a

te
 o

f 
C

o
s

t:
$1

93
,2

53
.5

0
$1

,4
70

.8
0

$
1

9
4

,7
2

4
.3

0

A
S

-R
E

A
D

 P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L

 A
M

O
U

N
T

C
O

R
R

E
C

T
E

D
 T

O
T

A
L

 P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L

 A
M

O
U

N
T

$1
93

,2
53

.5
0

E
ng

in
ee

r'
s 

E
st

im
at

e

U
N

IT
 C

O
S

T
IT

E
M

 C
O

S
T

U
N

IT
 C

O
S

T
IT

E
M

 C
O

S
T

U
N

IT
 C

O
S

T
IT

E
M

 C
O

S
T

$1
0.

00
$2

00
.0

0
$7

.0
0

$1
40

.0
0

$3
2.

60
$6

52
.0

0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
.0

0
$1

.0
0

$6
0.

00
$6

0.
00

$6
0.

00
$4

,9
80

.0
0

$4
0.

00
$3

,3
20

.0
0

$1
17

.7
5

$9
,7

73
.2

5

$7
0.

00
$4

,8
30

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$6
,9

00
.0

0
$1

17
.8

5
$8

,1
31

.6
5

$1
0.

00
$4

4,
58

0.
00

$8
.0

0
$3

5,
66

4.
00

$1
0.

26
$4

5,
73

9.
08

$3
0.

00
$3

,4
20

.0
0

$3
0.

00
$3

,4
20

.0
0

$3
7.

00
$4

,2
18

.0
0

$2
8.

00
$2

,5
48

.0
0

$1
6.

00
$1

,4
56

.0
0

$3
5.

00
$3

,1
85

.0
0

$1
0.

00
$6

30
.0

0
$6

.0
0

$3
78

.0
0

$1
7.

45
$1

,0
99

.3
5

$1
2.

00
$5

28
.0

0
$6

.0
0

$2
64

.0
0

$1
7.

50
$7

70
.0

0

$2
.5

0
$7

,6
10

.0
0

$2
.0

0
$6

,0
88

.0
0

$3
.7

5
$1

1,
41

5.
00

$1
30

.0
0

$1
,4

30
.0

0
$1

92
.0

0
$2

,1
12

.0
0

$1
75

.0
0

$1
,9

25
.0

0

$3
2.

00
$2

,0
16

.0
0

$2
8.

00
$1

,7
64

.0
0

$6
0.

00
$3

,7
80

.0
0

$5
0.

00
$8

50
.0

0
$4

0.
00

$6
80

.0
0

$6
3.

00
$1

,0
71

.0
0

$6
0.

00
$1

,6
20

.0
0

$4
2.

00
$1

,1
34

.0
0

$6
8.

00
$1

,8
36

.0
0

$3
0.

00
$3

90
.0

0
$4

5.
00

$5
85

.0
0

$8
1.

00
$1

,0
53

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$1

0,
00

0.
00

$1
3,

00
0.

00
$1

3,
00

0.
00

$9
,8

00
.0

0
$9

,8
00

.0
0

$1
0,

00
0.

00
$1

0,
00

0.
00

$1
20

.0
0

$1
20

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
3,

10
0.

00
$1

3,
10

0.
00

$4
,0

00
.0

0
$4

,0
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$6
00

.0
0

$6
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$6
5.

00
$1

0,
53

0.
00

$6
6.

50
$1

0,
77

3.
00

$5
7.

86
$9

,3
73

.3
2

$2
3.

00
$1

1,
24

7.
00

$2
2.

75
$1

1,
12

4.
75

$1
9.

78
$9

,6
72

.4
2

$7
.0

0
$4

,6
97

.0
0

$7
.7

5
$5

,2
00

.2
5

$6
.6

8
$4

,4
82

.2
8

$2
.5

0
$1

0,
06

5.
00

$2
.5

0
$1

0,
06

5.
00

$2
.2

0
$8

,8
57

.2
0

$3
00

.0
0

$1
7,

10
0.

00
$2

88
.0

0
$1

6,
41

6.
00

$2
50

.0
9

$1
4,

25
5.

13

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$3

,0
00

.0
0

$9
38

.5
0

$2
,8

15
.5

0
$8

16
.0

0
$2

,4
48

.0
0

$1
,2

50
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$1
,2

70
.0

0
$2

,5
40

.0
0

$1
,1

04
.9

0
$2

,2
09

.8
0

$3
,5

00
.0

0
$3

,5
00

.0
0

$3
,3

65
.0

0
$3

,3
65

.0
0

$2
,9

26
.2

0
$2

,9
26

.2
0

$0
.6

5
$2

,1
93

.7
5

$0
.6

5
$2

,1
93

.7
5

$0
.5

6
$1

,8
90

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$7

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,4

50
.0

0
$7

,3
50

.0
0

$2
,1

30
.7

6
$6

,3
92

.2
8

$8
50

.0
0

$1
,7

00
.0

0
$8

68
.0

0
$1

,7
36

.0
0

$7
54

.4
0

$1
,5

08
.8

0

$8
50

.0
0

$1
,7

00
.0

0
$8

68
.0

0
$1

,7
36

.0
0

$7
54

.4
0

$1
,5

08
.8

0

$5
20

.0
0

$2
,6

00
.0

0
$5

53
.0

0
$2

,7
65

.0
0

$4
81

.1
4

$2
,4

05
.7

0

$2
0.

00
$5

60
.0

0
$1

2.
00

$3
36

.0
0

$1
45

.0
0

$4
,0

60
.0

0

$5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
$2

00
.0

0
$6

00
.0

0
$1

,1
25

.0
0

$3
,3

75
.0

0

$1
,2

50
.0

0
$1

,2
50

.0
0

$1
,1

83
.0

0
$1

,1
83

.0
0

$1
,0

28
.8

8
$1

,0
28

.8
8

$5
20

.0
0

$2
,6

00
.0

0
$1

,2
04

.0
0

$6
,0

20
.0

0
$1

,0
46

.5
5

$5
,2

32
.7

5

$1
30

.0
0

$1
1,

70
0.

00
$1

80
.0

0
$1

6,
20

0.
00

$1
32

.0
0

$1
1,

88
0.

00

$6
50

.0
0

$1
,9

50
.0

0
$6

22
.0

0
$1

,8
66

.0
0

$5
40

.3
5

$1
,6

21
.0

5

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$3

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$3
50

.0
0

$3
50

.0
0

75
 K

op
pi

e 
D

r.
C

hi
ca

go
, I

L
 6

06
39

C
op

en
ha

ve
r 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 I

nc
S

um
it

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

o.
, I

nc
.

11
91

6 
W

. M
ai

n 
S

t.

L
an

dm
ar

k 
C

on
tr

ac
to

rs
, I

nc

$2
04

,5
85

.9
4

$1
96

,8
24

.7
5

$1
96

,0
11

.2
5

$2
04

,5
85

.9
4

$1
96

,8
24

.7
5

$1
96

,0
11

.2
5

H
un

tl
ey

, I
L

 6
01

42
G

il
be

rt
s,

 I
L

 6
01

36
41

50
 W

 W
ri

gh
tw

oo
d 

A
ve

.

EX
H

IB
IT

 "
A

"



Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Reviewed by: Joe Dahm, Director Public Works 
Prepared by: Chris Tomich, Village Engineer   

Legislative Summary  
 

Resolution 22-09 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TASK ORDER WITH 
CIORBA GROUP, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR THE DEMPSTER STREET STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

Introduced: February 28, 2022 
  
Purpose: To authorize the Village Administrator to execute a task order with Ciorba Group, 

Inc to complete construction engineering for Dempster Street Streetscape 
Improvements Project. 

  
Background: Resolution 22-08, approved February 28, 2022, authorized a contract to construct 

streetscape improvements along the south side of Dempster Street from Lincoln 
Avenue to Ferris Avenue. The construction engineering required for this project is 
beyond the expertise and capacity of Village staff, so the Village will need to 
procure engineering services for this work. Resolution 22-01, approved January 
10, 2022, authorized a task order contract with Ciorba Group, Inc. for professional 
engineering services. Village staff has negotiated a scope of services from Ciorba 
Group, Inc. to complete this work. 

  
Programs, Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Public Works Department 

  
Fiscal Impact: $39,516.50 
  
Source of Funds: 2022 Lehigh-Ferris TIF District Fund Account Number 15-10-79-57-1031 
  

Workload Impact: The Public Works Department as part of their normal work activities will perform 
the management and implementation of the project. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special Considerations 
or Requirements: 

None 
 

  
 



RESOLUTION 22-09 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TASK ORDER WITH 
CIORBA GROUP, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR THE DEMPSTER STREET STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  
 
  

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, Resolution 22-08, approved February 28, 2022, authorized execution of a contract 

with A Lamp Concrete Contractors, Inc. for the Dempster Street Streetscape Improvements Project; and 

WHEREAS, the construction engineering for this contract exceeds the capacity of the Public 

Works Department - Engineering Division to complete the necessary work; and 

 WHEREAS, Resolution 22-01, approved January 10, 2022, authorized execution of a task order 

contract with Ciorba Group, Inc. for professional engineering services needs that may arise; and 

WHEREAS, Village staff has negotiated a scope of services from Ciorba Group, Inc. in the 

amount of $39,516.50 to perform the needed construction engineering services for Dempster Street 

Streetscape Improvements Project; and 

WHEREAS, funding for the above work in the amount of $350,000 is allocated for Dempster 

Street Streetscape design engineering, construction, and construction engineering within the 2022 

Adopted Budget Lehigh-Ferris TIF District Fund Account Number 15-10-79-57-1031. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

  

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

 SECTION 2: The Village Administrator or his designee is hereby authorized to execute a task 

order with Ciorba Group, Inc to complete construction engineering for the Dempster Street Streetscape 

Improvements Project in the not-to-exceed amount of $39,516.50. 

SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

 
 
 
 
 



PASSED this 28th day of February 2022 

Trustee Grear    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 

APPROVED by me this 28th day of February 2022 

 
____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 
1st day of March 2022 
 
       
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



EXHIBIT A 

 

TASK ORDER #1 

 

In accordance with Article 2.1 of the Professional Services Task Order Agreement dated 

COMMENCEMENT DATE between the Village of Morton Grove (“Village”) and 

CONSULTANT (“Consultant”), the Consultant is authorized by the Village to perform the 

following task order as follows: 

1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  

Construction engineering services for Dempster Street Streetscape Improvements Project 

2 TIME OF PERFORMANCE (ATTACH SCHEDULE IF APPROPRIATE):  

Within 60 days following final acceptance of the construction improvements 

3 CONSULTANT’S COMPENSATION: 

Not-to-exceed $39,516.50 

4 ADDITIONAL TERMS : 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

All other terms and conditions of the Professional Services Task Order Agreement remain 

unchanged. 

VILLAGE  CONSULTANT 

   

Signature  Signature 

   

       Village Administrator  President 

   

Date  Date 

 

 



  

Task Order 2 
Scope of Services 

Dempster Street Construction Engineering 
 

 
1. Preconstruction Meeting 
The Resident Technician will develop a pre-construction meeting agenda which will include 
such topics as progress schedule, construction staging, material and equipment storage sites, 
listing of materials and equipment submittals, general correspondence procedures, traffic 
control, subcontractor roles, and submittal for payment. The Resident Technician will 
coordinate invites and direct the pre-construction meeting. The Resident Technician will 
prepare meeting minutes and distribute them to all participants. 
 
2. Shop Drawing/Catalog Cut Review 
The Resident Engineer/Technician will review all required shop drawings and catalog cuts to 
ensure conformance with plans and Village standards. The Resident Technician will work with 
the contractor and fabricator on any necessary revisions and ensure all material is in accordance 
with the contract specs. 

 
3.Construction Observation Services 
We have based our fee on the 21 working days in the construction contract, which is estimated 
6 weeks of construction. 

 
Construction will be monitored for conformance with the contract documents and Village and 
IDOT standards. If there are any unforeseen conditions or issues that develop, Ciorba’s 
construction staff will work with the design engineers, if necessary, to provide options to the 
Village to mitigate project delays and resolve the issue. Daily documentation by the technician 
will include Daily Reports of the quantities and calculations of the work completed, daily diaries 
detailing the manpower, equipment and work completed, and daily photos of the work. Monthly 
pay estimates will be prepared and submitted to the Village for review and processing. Ciorba 
will prepare any necessary change orders for Village review and approval.   
 
Other duties for the Resident Technician will be to continue public stakeholder involvement by 
addressing any concerns or issues of local business owners or other stakeholders.  At minimum, 
this will consist of answering phone calls, receiving and sending e-mails, and contacting 
residents to ensure resolution. Issues will be resolved in a timely manner as determined by the 
Village and situational needs.   
 
As an on-site extension of the Village, Ciorba will maintain close communication with the 
Village’s designated representative. This will be accomplished by as-needed daily 
communication and periodic progress meetings chaired by Ciorba, if necessary. 
 



  

 

4.Construction Project Close-Out 

Ciorba will maintain a punch list of construction items that require correction before final 
acceptance of the project and provide it to the Contractor. The site will be inspected for 
completion of punch list items and the Contractor will be notified of any incomplete items. 
After the punch list is completed, site inspections will be conducted by Ciorba with the Village 
and the Contractor.  Any concerns identified at the walk-through will be resolved prior to 
acceptance of the improvement.  The closeout process continues with the preparation of final 
documentation papers for project acceptance by the Village. This includes all material 
certifications, final quantity measurements, balancing change orders and final pay estimates.   
 
5. Record Drawings 
As construction proceeds, any modifications to the plans will be field measured and 
documented for inclusion in the final construction record drawings.  All markups will be neatly 
compiled on a single red-line PDF to revise the CAD files for the Village records. 
 
 



Cost Estimate of
Consultant Services 
(Direct Labor Multiple)

Firm Ciorba Group, Inc Date 02/03/22
Client Village of Morton Grove

County Cook

DIRECT SERVICES % OF
ITEM MANHOURS PAYROLL COSTS BY TOTAL GRAND

OTHERS TOTAL
(A) (B) (D) (E) (C+D+E)

Construction Startup 4 402.00$             402.00$             1.02%
Pre-Construction Conference 7 833.50$             833.50$             2.11%
Construction Observation / Documentation 264 28,092.00$        2,275.00$          30,367.00$        76.85%
Project Close-out 32 3,476.00$          3,476.00$          8.80%
Construction Record Drawings 4 402.00$             402.00$             1.02%
Shop Drawing Review / Catalog Cut Review 4 662.00$             662.00$             1.68%
Project Management & Administration 6 1,112.00$          1,112.00$          2.81%
Soil & Material Consultants 2,262.00$          2,262.00$          5.72%

TOTALS 321 34,979.50$        2,275.00$          2,262.00$          39,516.50$        100.00%

PRINTED 2/3/2022, 8:05 PM



Ta
sk

S u
b-

Ta
sk

A
ct

iv
ity

Grand 
Total Pr

in
ci

pa
l 

R
es

id
en

t E
ng

in
ee

r I
II

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 II

I

321 2 38 281
1. Task Total: 315 34 281

080 Subtotal: 4 4

Review Plans, Specifications and Contract Documents 2 2

Set Up Project Documentation 2 2

081 Subtotal: 7 2 5

Preparation 2 2

Attendance 4 2 2

Meeting Minutes 1 1

083 Subtotal: 264 24 240

Resident Engineer (6 weeks x 4 hrs/week) 24 24

Construction Technician (6 weeks x 5 days/week x 8 hrs/day) 240 240

084 Subtotal: 32 4 28

Develop Punch List Items 2 2

Coordinate Punch List Completion 2 2

Inspect Punch List Items 2 2

Final Walk Through with Client 2 2

Pre-final and Final Pay Estimates 4 4

Complete Documentation Including Material Certification 20 4 16

085 Subtotal: 4 4

Plan Sheets 4 4

086 Subtotal: 4 4

Street Lighting 4 4

2. Task Total: 6 2 4

100 Subtotal: 6 2 4

Project Management 6 2 4

Project Management & Administration

Construction Engineering

Construction Startup

Pre-Construction Conference

Project Management & Administration

Construction Observation / Documentation

Project Close-out

Construction Record Drawings

Village of Morton Grove
Dempster Street Streetscape Phase III

Shop Drawing Review / Catalog Cut Review

EXHIBIT "1"



FIRM NAME Ciorba Group, Inc. DATE 02/03/22
PRIME/SUPPLEMENT Prime
Client Village of Morton Grove

ESCALATION FACTOR 0.00%

CLASSIFICATION CURRENT RATE ESCALATED RATE

Principal $225.00 $225.00
Senior Project Manager $214.00 $214.00
Project Manager $195.00 $195.00
Resident Engineer IV $194.00 $194.00
Lead Structural Engineer $159.50 $159.50
Senior Project Engineer $159.50 $159.50
CAD Manager $143.00 $143.00
Resident Engineer III $165.50 $165.50
Project Engineer $138.00 $138.00
Structural Technician $135.00 $135.00
Senior Structures Engineer $130.00 $130.00
Senior Technician $124.00 $124.00
Senior Engineer $117.00 $117.00
Resident Engineer II/ Sr. Construction Engineer $117.00 $117.00
Engineering Technician III $100.50 $100.50
Staff Engineer II $99.50 $99.50
Structures Engineer II $106.00 $106.00
Resident Engineer I /Construction Engineer II $103.00 $103.00
Structures Engineer I $95.50 $95.50
Staff Engineer I $94.50 $94.50
Construction Engineer I $94.50 $94.50
Engineering Technician II $93.50 $93.50
Engineering Technician I $71.50 $71.50
Intern $43.00 $43.00

Printed 2/3/2022 8:05 PM



Construction Observation / Documentation

Description Unit Unit Cost Quantity Extended Cost

Vehicle (day) day 65.00$  35 2,275.00$            

Total: 2,275.00$            

IN-HOUSE DIRECT COSTS 
Village of Morton Grove

Dempster Street Streetscape Phase III
PHASE III



Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Reviewed by: Joe Dahm, Director Public Works 
Prepared by: Chris Tomich, Village Engineer 
   

Legislative Summary  
 

Resolution 22-11 
 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES USA, LLC  
FOR THE 2022 SEWER LINING PROGRAM-CONTRACT A 

Introduced: February 28, 2022 
  
Purpose: To authorize the Village Administrator to execute a contract with Insituform 

Technologies USA, LLC for 2022 Sewer Lining Program-Contract A.  
  
Background: The Village has an annual program to rehabilitate older sanitary and combined 

sewer pipes for improved flow capacity and elimination of groundwater infiltration 
and inflow in the Village’s sewer infrastructure. 
 
The Public Works Department developed contract documents to line a sanitary 
sewer along Greenwood Avenue from Harlem Avenue to Waukegan Road. Bids 
were solicited on the Village website for ten business days. Twenty-two entities 
downloaded contract documents. Three bids were received and opened on February 
15, 2022. The tabulation of bids is attached as Exhibit “A”. Insituform 
Technologies USA, LLC submitted the lowest bid. The qualifications of Insituform 
Technologies USA have been evaluated and was determined to be qualified to 
perform this work. This contract conforms to the purchasing requirements of the 
Village. This contract must conform to the requirements of the Prevailing Wage 
Act. 

  
Programs, Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Public Works Department 

  
Fiscal Impact: $254,350.00 
  
Source of Funds: 2022 Enterprise Fund Account Numbers 40-50-34-55-2290 
  

Workload Impact: The Public Works Department as part of their normal work activities will perform 
the management and implementation of the project. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special Considerations 
or Requirements: 

None 
 

  
 



RESOLUTION 22-11 
 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES USA, LLC FOR THE 
FOR THE 2022 SEWER LINING PROGRAM-CONTRACT A 

 
  

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village has an annual program to rehabilitate older sanitary and combined sewer 

pipe for improved flow capacity and elimination of groundwater infiltration and inflow in the Village’s 

sewer infrastructure; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Works Department developed contract documents to line a sanitary sewer 

along Greenwood Avenue from Harlem Avenue to Waukegan Road; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Works Department advertised on the Village website beginning February 

2, 2022, inviting bids on the “2022 Sewer Lining Program-Contract A”; and 

WHEREAS, the bidding procedures comply with purchasing requirements of the Municipal Code, 

Title 1, Chapter 9, Article A; and 

WHEREAS, twenty-two entities downloaded contract documents; and 

WHEREAS, three bids were received, publicly opened and read at the Public Works Facility at 

10:00 a.m. on February 15, 2022, with the bid results shown in Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, this contract must conform to the requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act; and 

WHEREAS, Insituform Technologies USA, LLC submitted the lowest bid; and    

WHEREAS, Insituform Technologies USA, LLC has successfully completed many similar 

projects for the Village, including the 2021 contract to line a downstream segment of the sanitary sewer; 

and 

WHEREAS, the low bid is $254,350.00 and is $57,450.00 more than the Engineer’s Estimate of 

Cost; and 

WHEREAS, 2022 Adopted Budget allocates $550,000 for sewer lining in the Enterprise Fund 

Account Number 40-50-34-55-2290. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

  



SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

 SECTION 2: The Corporate Authorities accept the bid of Insituform Technologies USA, LLC of 

Chesterfield, Missouri in the amount of $254,350.00. 

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Insituform 

Technologies USA, LLC for 2022 Sewer Lining Program-Contract A in the amount of $254,350.00. 

 SECTION 4: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works or their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement the contract for 2022 Sewer Lining Program-Contract 

A. 

 SECTION 5: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

 
PASSED this 28th day of February 2022 

Trustee Grear    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 

APPROVED by me this 28th day of February 2022 

 
____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 
1st day of March 2022 
 
 
       
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



Village of Morton Grove,  Cook County, Ilinois
2022 Sewer Lining Program - Contract A

Bid Tabulation

Bid Opening: February 15, 2022 10:00am

PAY 

ITEM
PAY ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST ITEM COST UNIT COST ITEM COST UNIT COST ITEM COST UNIT COST ITEM COST

1 Cured-In-Place Pipe (CIPP) Sanitary Sewer 17" LF 2550 $77.00 $196,350.00 $135.00 $344,250.00 $99.00 $252,450.00 $125.00 $318,750.00

2 Reinstating Service Laterals EA 3 $100.00 $300.00 $250.00 $750.00 $550.00 $1,650.00 $1,500.00 $4,500.00

3 Protruding Tap Removal EA 1 $250.00 $250.00 $600.00 $600.00 $250.00 $250.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

Apparent Low Bidder:  Insituform Technologies USA, LLC
Apparent Low Bid Amount:  

Insituform Technologies USA, LLC

$254,350.00 $325,250.00

$254,350.00 $325,250.00

2500 West Arlington Street
Goodfield, Illinois 61742

CORRECTED TOTAL PROPOSAL AMOUNT $196,900.00 $345,600.00

National Power RoddingEngineer's Estimate Hoerr Construction, Inc.

1416 Country Road 200 N
Chesterfield, Missouri 63005 Chicago, Illinois 60612

$254,350.00

AS-READ PROPOSAL AMOUNT $345,600.00

17988 Edison Avenue

EXHIBIT "A"



   
 

Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Reviewed by: Joe Dahm, Director Public Works 
Prepared by: John Mitchell, Superintendent, Street Division   
   

Legislative Summary 
Resolution 22-12 

 
AUTHORIZING CONTRACT EXTENSIONS WITH BILL’S COMPLETE LANDSCAPE 
SERVICE, INC. FOR THE 2022 AND 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROGRAMS 

  

Introduced: February 28, 2022 
  
Purpose: To authorize the Village Administrator to execute a Letter of Agreement extending the 2021 

contract with Bill’s Complete Landscape Service, Inc. (BCLS) for the 2022 Landscape 
Maintenance Program, and if circumstances warrant, for the 2023 Landscape Maintenance 
Program. 

  
Background: The Public Works Department maintains landscaping on Village properties and rights-of-way 

throughout the Village using in-house staff and hired contractors.  Resolution 21-28 was 
approved on April 12, 2021, and authorized a contract with Bill’s Complete Landscape Service, 
Inc. (BCLS) for the 2021 Landscape Maintenance Program for the awarded contract amount of 
$32,900.00. The 2021 contract with BCLS gave the Village the right to extend the contract for 
two one-year terms in 2022 and 2023, at the same unit prices, terms, and conditions upon the 
mutual written agreement of BCLS. BCLS performed the work for the 2021 Landscape 
Maintenance Program in a satisfactory manner and the Public Works Director recommends the 
Village extend the 2021 contract with BCLS for 2022 and increase the quantity by one (1) 
additional month at the beginning of the season increasing the contract amount by $4,200.00 for 
a total adjusted contract amount of $37,100.00. BCLS has agreed to extend the contract with the 
existing unit prices and terms for 2022. It may, depending on circumstances, also be in the 
Village’s best interest to extend the 2021 contract with BCLS for the 2023 Landscape 
Maintenance Program. This Resolution will authorize the Village Administrator to extend the 
2021 contract for the 2022 Landscape Maintenance Program, and if circumstances warrant for 
the 2023 Landscape Maintenance Program.  
 

  
Programs, 
Departments 
 Affected 

Public Works Department, Municipal Departments 

  
Fiscal Impact: $37,100.00 
  
Source of Funds: 2022 General Fund - Account No. 025017-552295  
  
Workload Impact: Public Works Department shall administer this Contract as part of its normal workload. 
  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special 
Considerations:  

None 
 

 



RESOLUTION 22-12 
 

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT EXTENSIONS WITH BILL’S COMPLETE LANDSCAPE 
SERVICE, INC. FOR THE 2022 AND 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROGRAMS 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Works Department maintains landscaping on Village properties and 

rights-of-way throughout the Village using in-house staff and hired contractors; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution 21-28 was approved on April 12, 2021 and authorized a contract with 

Bill’s Complete Landscape Service, Inc. (BCLS) for annual landscape maintenance for the awarded 

contract amount of $32,900.00; and 

 WHEREAS, within the 2021 contract with BCLS, the Village reserved the right to extend the 

contract for two one-year terms in 2022 and 2023, at the same unit prices, terms, and conditions upon the 

mutual written agreement of BCLS; and 

WHEREAS, BCLS performed the work for the 2021 Landscape Maintenance Program in a 

satisfactory manner ; and  

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director recommends the Village extend the 2021 contract with 

BCLS for 2022 and increase the quantity by one (1) additional month at the beginning of the season 

increasing the contract amount by $4,200.00 for a total adjusted contract amount of $37,100.00 (see 

Exhibit A).; and 

WHEREAS, BCLS has agreed to extend the contract with the existing unit prices and terms for 

2022; and 

WHEREAS, funding for this Contract is available in the 2022 General Fund Account No. 025017-

552295; and 

WHEREAS, depending on then existing circumstances, it may be in the Village’s best interest to 

extend the 2021 contract for the 2023 Landscape Maintenance Program. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

  



SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2: The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a Letter of Agreement 

extending the contract for the 2022 Landscape Maintenance Program with Bills Complete Landscaping 

Service, Inc., for one year until December 31, 2022 in the contract amount of $37,100.00 

 SECTION 3: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works or their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement the contract for the 2022 Landscape Maintenance 

Program. 

SECTION 4: The Village Administrator is further authorized to execute a Letter of Agreement 

extending the contract for the 2023 Landscape Maintenance Program with Bills Complete Landscaping if 

recommended by the Director of Public Works at the end of the 2022 Landscape Maintenance Program. 

 SECTION 5: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

 
PASSED this 28th day of February 2022 

Trustee Grear    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 

APPROVED by me this 28th day of February 2022 

 
____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 
1st day of March 2022 
 
 
       
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



- 
2

0
2

1
 

2
0

2
2

 A
d

ju
st

ed
 Q

u
an

ti
ti

es
 

$
2

6
,9

6
0

.0
0

 

8
 

8
 

8
 

 

$
3

,1
6

0
.0

0
 

$
3

,4
8

0
.0

0
 

$
3

7
,1

0
0

.0
0

 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 

D
R
A
FT

 



 
 
March 1, 2022 
 
 
 
Mr. W.J. Szydlowski 
Bill’s Complete Landscape Service, Inc. 
6100 Oakton Street 
Morton Grove, Illinois 60053 
 
 
Subject:   2022 Landscape Maintenance Program Contract Extension 
 
 
Dear Mr. Szydlowski: 
 
Bill’s Complete Landscape Service, Inc. preformed work in 2021 for the Village of Morton 
Grove’s Landscape Maintenance Program.  The Village desires to extend the contract for one year 
and understands Bill’s Landscape Service, Inc. desires to extend the contract as well. 
 
The Contract terms and condition will remain the same as the original Contract.  The total amount 
will be adjusted to $37,100 for 2022 based on increasing the quantity by one (1) additional month 
at the beginning of the season.  You must submit an updated Contract Bond and an updated 
Certificate of Insurance.  
 
Your signature below will indicate your concurrence to extend the Contract as described above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Ralph E. Czerwinski 
Village Administrator 
 
Cc:  Mr. Joseph J. Dahm, Director of Public Works 

 
Concur: 
 
              W.J. Szydlowski, President 



Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  
Reviewed by: Joe Dahm, Director Public Works 
Prepared by: Kevin Lochner, Superintendent Water Division   
   

Legislative Summary 
 

Resolution 22-13 
 

TO AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF ONE (1) NEW 2021 RAM MASTER CARGO VAN 
AND SEWER CAMERA SYSTEM  

FROM STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY OF ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
   

Introduced: February 28, 2022 
  
Purpose: To authorize the purchase of a new 2021 Ram Master Cargo Van and Envirosight 

Rovverx Sewer Camera system replacing the 2001 Ram Van and 15-year-old Aries 
Camera system. 

  
Background: The Public Works Sewer Division depends on sewer televising as a vital tool for 

accurate main line pipe inspection to determine pipe repair locations, pipe 
maintenance and the required annual televising under the Infiltration and Inflow 
Control Program mandated by the Metropolitan Reclamation District of Greater 
Chicago (MWRDGC). The current 15-year-old Aries camera system has reached 
the end of its useful life and needs replacement. The existing 2001 Ram Van still 
has a few years of useful life and will be repurposed at Public Works. 
The purchase of a new 2021 Ram Master Cargo Van and a new Envirosight 
Rovverx Sewer Camera System Package for Public Works was competitively bid 
through the Houston-Galveston Area Council Purchasing Program (HGAC) under 
Contract No. SC01-21A (see Exhibit A). The HGAC is used by 7,000 local 
government agencies across 49 states. Standard Equipment Company, 625 S. Route 
83, Elmhurst Illinois was selected as the low bid vendor. The current 15-year-old 
Aries Camera System will be traded in for $5,000.00 for a final purchase price of 
$335,720.68. Funding for this purchase is available in the 2022 Enterprise Fund in 
the amount of $365,000.00 

  
Programs, Departments 
 or Groups Affected 

Public Works Department, Village Residents, MWRD Infiltration and Inflow 
Program 

  
Fiscal Impact: $335,720.68 
  
Source of Funds: Account No. 405033-572030  
  

Workload Impact: The management and supervision of this purchase will be performed by the 
Vehicle Maintenance Division of Public Works as part of their normal operations. 

  
Administrator 
Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  
Second Reading: Not Required 
  
Special Considerations 
or Requirements: 

None 
 

 



RESOLUTION 22-13 
 

TO AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF ONE (1) NEW 2021 RAM MASTER CARGO VAN 
AND SEWER CAMERA SYSTEM  

FROM STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY OF ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
  

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Works Sewer Division depends on sewer televising as a vital tool for 

accurate main line pipe inspections to determine pipe repair locations, pipe maintenance and the required 

annual televising under the Infiltration and Inflow Control Program mandated by the Metropolitan 

Reclamation District of Greater Chicago (MWRDGC); and 

WHEREAS, the current 15-year-old Aries camera system has reached the end of its useful life and 

is in need of replacement; and 

 WHEREAS, the existing 2001 Ram Van still has a few years of useful life and will be repurposed 

at Public Works; and 

WHEREAS, the purchase of the new 2021 Ram Master Cargo Van and the new Envirosight 

Rovverx Sewer Camera System Package for Public Works was competitively bid through the Houston-

Galveston Area Council Purchasing Program (HGAC) under Contract No. SC01-21A (see Exhibit A); 

and 

WHEREAS, the Houston Galveston (HGAC) is used by 7,000 local government agencies across 

49 states; and 

WHEREAS, Standard Equipment Company, 625 S. Route 83 Elmhurst, Illinois was selected as 

the low bid vendor; and 

WHEREAS, the current 15-year-old Aries Camera System will be traded in for the amount of 

$5,000.00 for a final purchase price of $335,720.68; and 

WHEREAS, Funding for this purchase is available in the 2022 Enterprise Fund Account No. 

405033-572030 in the amount of $365,000.00; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Administrator and staff recommends the Village Board approve and 

authorize a contract for the purchase of one (1) new 2021 Ram Master Cargo Van and one (1) new 

Envirosight Rovverx Sewer Camera System from Standard Equipment Company, 625 S. Route 83, 

Elmhurst Illinois 60126, for the purchase price of $335,720.68. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

  

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2: The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Standard 

Equipment Company for one (1) new 2021 Ram Master Cargo Van and one (1) new Envirosight Rovverx 

Sewer Camera system in the amount of $335,720.68. 

 SECTION 3: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works or their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement the purchase of the new vehicle and camera system. 

 SECTION 4: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

 
PASSED this 28th day of February 2022 

Trustee Grear    

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Witko    

 

APPROVED by me this 28th day of February 2022 

 
____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 
1st day of March 2022 
 
 
       
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



EXHIBIT A 

 

  

DODGE RAM PROMASTER 2500                     

AND 



 



 







 





$288,029.68 
$52,891.00 
-$5,000.00 

$335,720.68 








	1 Agenda February 28, 2022 (1)
	2 Minutes_3_Feb 14-2022
	11a1a Res 21-10 LS Emergency Water Supply IGA
	11a1b Res 22-10 IGA NWWC for Emergency water supply_
	AUTHORIZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE NORTHWEST WATER COMMISSION OF COOK COUNTY AND THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS FOR THE SUPPLY AND PURCHASE OF WATER THROUGH AN EMERGENCY CONNECTION

	11a1c MG Res 22-10 - Exhibit A - NWC Emergency Interconnection Agreement with Morton Grove 2-21-22 Clean Final Proposed IGA Document w
	12f1a RES 22-08 - LS DEMPSTS CONST CONTRACT APPROVAL
	12f1b RES 22-08 - DEMPSTS CONST CONTRACT APPROVAL
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	12f1c RES 22-08 - EXHIBIT DEMPSTS CONST CONTRACT APPROVAL
	12f2a RES 22-09 - LS DEMPSTS CE CONTRACT APPROVAL
	12f2b RES 22-09 - DEMPSTS CE CONTRACT APPROVAL
	AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TASK ORDER WITH
	CIORBA GROUP, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk


	12f2c RES 22-09 - EXHIBIT DEMPSTS CE CONTRACT APPROVAL
	Dempster Street CECS.pdf
	Work Breakdown Structure
	CECS (DLM)
	Payroll Rates
	InHouseDC


	ADPD5D2.tmp
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	ADP35F7.tmp
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	ADPE73C.tmp
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADPCC9F.tmp
	AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TASK ORDER WITH
	CIORBA GROUP, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk


	Blank Page
	ADP87F7.tmp
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	ADP6375.tmp
	Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk

	12f2c RES 22-09 - EXHIBIT DEMPSTS CE CONTRACT APPROVAL.pdf
	Dempster Street CECS.pdf
	Work Breakdown Structure
	CECS (DLM)
	Payroll Rates
	InHouseDC


	ADP7BBF.tmp
	AUTHORIZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE NORTHWEST WATER COMMISSION OF COOK COUNTY AND THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS FOR THE SUPPLY AND PURCHASE OF WATER THROUGH AN EMERGENCY CONNECTION




